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“Go Tor Profit and Crowih” (o continue in 2005
A1 the Slemens Business Conference io Berin at the
of Octobes, the Company’s top managers worldwide gnm &
“Go Jor Profit and Growih” again tn 2005, The Group margin
targets set in December 2000 were lefl unchanged,

T further improve overal] carnbngs, our weals Gromps must
intensively employ all the levers in our menagement s
order (o approach helr margin targets and achieve siead
tainable progress. In particular, we are focusing on sol

SU8-
g o)

eeterelated problents a1 Transporiation Systents and positioning
ihe new Communications ap and Slemens &»’»wﬁuu(«m Services

for future success. Our strong Groups - which bave shown how
o optimize processes, achieve profitable g qm\wm ihrough inmno-
vation and engender customer loyalty - cannot rest on thetr
Taarels, These Growps, too, will heve to furber strengithen thelr
markel posiiions.
Our reglo Jmﬂ units are under a speclal obligation to grow
ﬂh@ﬁ\r busin s ap m)Lum in partieuwlar, (© our new reglonal
Inio which we lunneled our Groups’
qliR ] w? ik (ﬁ[{

leverage it
enee @m@ﬂ customer [@mxim iy 1o expand fis business.

We are JU%@@m\wm growth inftiatives In selected reglon
such as ihe Unfted States, China, Russia, lndts, Japan, and Cen-
el and Lastern Burope - and working to generate further gals
elsewhere

in @w future, our growtlk will conting
as Internal. We have made several key &(mﬁuﬂ#aulunmﬁ recendls
Alston's industrial mrbine business and the Duﬂﬁb‘[ﬁ mmﬂ nxuwcﬂrvc
plant suppiier Bonus & mmm\ for mo 8
Chrysler’s electront
[ ,m \"'D(B & ‘WGDM%"(@
{ieF fi i
TOVES are pmmw@l m M@mpﬂ@ we aw vaw) m@d@‘ AN O H@
acquire Ausirie’s VA Technologle AG,

LETUER 7O QUR SHARENGUDERS

“The Company'’s
top managers
pledged to ‘Go for
Profit and Growth'
again in 2005.”

“Our growth will
continue to he
external as well as
internal.”
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The first
profits

ssue is our business por folio. Can we be & L
ol leader in electronics and electrical en 3“'(er=

i rend selup?
Thbs fs @ matier uw mm&@m W(Mw [P
] i edical solu

g ineering, con
s have Lo)@cu ‘H

el Rinmes, W
i OUF CnePmOS feld of activity, That is co
we have also proven ihat we iake the need for change serl-

Slemens was, is and always wili be a living organism. “Siemens was, is
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“In our global R&D
network, all facili-
ties —including
those in Germany
- can leverage
their specific
strengths.”

Al Stemens Groups are required to cox w@ﬂlh(ﬂ'
tion benchmark studies. This
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and infilate conerete programs (o rap
discover,
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The third lssue Is customer orientation, In recent years,
change tn this ares has been perttculely dramatic, for our
customers have undergose major trasstormations them

selves. Some who were fb)mm@u\«\; puslic-sector com;
governmental author en privatl

contend with tough
adapled vur corporate culiure (o
Corporaie Principles state: *We s
to keep them competitive,” This mea
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(o ensure marke-oriented solutions.
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LEVTER VO GUR SRARGHOLDERS

cuslomers eapect us o approack them as a single team. This
stralegy glves us an edge over competiors who operate in
only one oF @ few segments - a stiuation we intend w explot
even more rigerously in the fuiure.

Nearly 40 reglions are now implementing the Slemens One
coneepl. In addition, @ Siemens One Team, which repores
directly o our President and CEO, has been set up in our Cor
porate Development Depariment. As well as genersting fts
own business, this new team s assisiing the Groups and
Reglonal Companies in creating cross wnlt struciures,

Customer prosimity everywhere in the world - it
ciple of aur corporat st

T fssue
in - B&D,

1, produc-

ed within a

our sales activitles, True glebal preseaee - our fin
can be achicved only when all links in the value o
hardware and software development, proct
tlon, services and, of course, sales - are eoml
globa) network.

Here, too, we see continuliy and change. Change, above all,
because of the major geopolitical evenis ef recent yeass, A

I

prime example §s (he opening of Ching, wiich began 20 vears
T o P " iobi
ago and has ereated vast new business opporuntties for West-  Every job in
ern companies. Russie ts undergotng o similar tronstorma- Germany is impor-

ehom. tant to us. And
And the changes that have taken place in Contrel, Taster it is encouraging
Southegstern lurope are just as lundamenial, The ca ] to see flexible,
eypanston of the BU hes opened up extraordinary business

ot e @ pesrl g N location-specific
opportwnities. As & result, the world map of reglonal
strengths and weaknesses pow looks very different than i did employment
only a few years age - o development we cannot afford 1o models now
ignone, enjoying greater
We have shown that these global changes do not necessartly acceptance.”

nvean & loss of jobs In Germany, a high-cost country. Every job
n Germany Is important to ws. And it bs encoursging to see
flextble, location-specific employment models now enjoying
greater acceplance,
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i

mens o responsible financial management is

ring. Financiel solidity - the sisth ssue - has been “Financial solidity

s of our enduring suceess for more (han 150 years. has been the basis
/ alprinel- of our enduring
ples of our conservaive approad, the methods and tools we success for more
;Mjﬁm aliways WMH?@ e than 150 years.”
Im ihe second hali of the 19908, we intradueed cconomic value

adided (EVA) s a performance yardsiick to enable us 1o belter

manage our businesses. EVA sccommodaies (he tnlerests

of aur investors withewt compromising those of our gther

stakeholders.

Our fnternal control sysiems have alse changed. Alihough
the recent discussion of corporaie governanee has entailed
considerable sdminisizaiive effort and expense, we now
know with grester certabnty that she principles agreed apon
are being observed throughout our entire company.

UNWaYE
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rgh there can be no change in the fundamer
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Finanelad solidity and corps
o the last fssie - responsi,
responsiib
ance with

GOVernance &
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with sur Business Conduct Gu
Groups and Reglons.

In & brogder sense, however, responsibility means ¢
into account (he interests of 8l our siakeholders: custor
employees and investors. it also means taking Inte account
sache! §

y ag & whole and the environment. The Sie bt
ness porfolie lergely comprises activiites that directly impact
peaple’s quality of life - in felds that cacompass true *life
technologles.” This explains why our Company and our
projects are always in the Dmelight - which Is Just one mere
reason why it Is s imporiant for us (o be & good nefghbor
everywhere we do business

&
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16 LETVER VE QUR SHARGRELBERS

So much for the fundamental ssues confronting us. As § men-
tioned carlier. Klaus Kieinfeld wil be talking over lrom me at the
close of the Annual Shareho
Together wiilh the other mer
the Company’s 10p MLnageme:
timuity and to actively shape the
o wish My Klelnfeld and his colivagues every success - for the
benefit of our customers, our enyslovees and vou, ihe share-
holders of Siemens.

mf\ V. d\k Uk
Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer

President and Chief Executive Officer
Siemens AG
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At a glance

Managing Board of Siemens AG”

|

Johannes Edward G. Rudi Thomas Claus Weyrich,
Feldmayer Krubasik, Lamprecht Ganswindt Prof, Dr. phil.,
Prof. Dr.rer. nat. Dr.-Ing.E.h.
Erich R. Reinhardt, Heinz-Joachim Klaus Kieinfeld, Heinrich v. Pierer, Jiirgen Radomski, Uriel J. Sharef, Klaus Wucherer,
Prof. Dr-Ing. Neubiirger Dr.rer.pol. Dr.jur., Dr-ing.€.h,, Dr.rerpol.b.c., Or.ver pol. Prof. Dr-ing.,
President and Chief Dr.techn. h.c. Dr.-ing.E.h.

Executive Officer

* As of January 1, 2005
For further information, see pages 84 -85,
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Figures reflect the stock split of April 30,

2001 (one additionat share for every two

shares held).

™ Fiscal year: October 1 to September 30

? Jo be proposed at the Annual Share~
halders’ Meeting

135~ indexed

1011503 9130104

D siemens :Dow Jones STOXX® 1 DAX®
o ~N
in billions of euros S K3
Other 8% 6%
Asia-Pacific 12% 12%
The Americas | T23% ‘ PS%
|
Europe 34% 34%
(excluding Germany)
Germany 23% 23%

2004
2003

Stock market information

in euros 2004 20030
Stock price range (XETRA closing prices, Frankfurt)

m__(_) e 68.30 58.32
Ltow . o 52.02 32.05
Year-end . o 59.21 51.14
Number of shares (year-end, in millions) . 8% 891
Market capitalization (year-end, in millions of euros) 52,761 45,559
Per-share data _

Earnings per share o 382 2,75
Earnings per share (fully diluted) . 366 275
Divide_ndi_ o X Al.ZS“’ 1.10

The Siemens share

As of September 30, 2004, the capital stock of Siemens AG totaled
approximately €2.7 biilion, representing some 891 million no-par value
shares in registered form. Each share has one vote.

In fiscal 2004, Siemens shares were traded on all German exchanges,
the Swiss stock exchange, and stock exchanges in New York and London.
On the New York Stock Exchange, Siemens shares are traded in the form
of ADRs (American Depository Receipts), with one ADR corresponding to
one Siemens share.

Sales by region

Adjusted for currency effects and portfolio activities, Siemens’ sales in
fiscal 2004 climbed 3% to €75.2 billion. Sales totaled €17.1 billion in
Germany, €25.2 billion in the other European countries, €13.6 billion in
the U.S. and €9.3 billion in Asia-Pacific, where China alone accounted
for €2.9 billion.
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Investments in research and development F 5
. . - L in biltions of euros w n
With R&D expenditures of some €5.1 biilion in fiscal 2004, we were once Other IBEC R M
. N . . N . 4
again a leader among electronics and electrical engineering companies. Lighting U 1‘;: - ﬁ:
Alarge share of our R&D outlays, more than 55%, continued to flow into Medical
information and communications and automation and control technolo- -
H Transportation 18% g7y
gies.
A strong patent portfolio gives us a head start in developing trendset-
ting technologies. Critical success factors include cross-Group technolo- .
gies — such as software architectures, innovative materials, imaging Power 8 | 7%
processes and sensor systems — that find application in a wide variety of o 7% | [
fields. Our company-wide top™* Innovation Program is providing new mo- and Control
mentum in our drive to fully leverage our synergy potentials. Initial results
include cross-product technology platforms for remote services; a uniform — ——— 4
information and 38% | {39%

controls architecture for applications ranging from power plants and rail- Communications
way systems to industrial controls and communications networks; and
systematic best practice sharing of the kind that has long characterized
our software initiative. By moving toward technological leadership in afl
our businesses, we are also strengthening our customer focus and global
competitiveness.

About half of our more than 45,000 researchers work outside Ger-
many. Our goal is to locate R&D activities in every market with high eco-
nomic and technological potential and to attract the best employees
worldwide. With these objectives in mind, we began substantially expand-
ing our research and development activities in China last year.
www.siemens.com/research_and_development

2004
2003

Strategic patent portfolio

In fiscal 2004, our researchers submitted 8,200 invention reports, 11%
more than in fiscal 2003. We fifed patent applications for about two-thirds
of these inventions. Our power of innovation has given us a leading posi-
tion in the international patent statistics: We are number one in Germany,
number two in Europe and among the top ten in the U.S. market.

Our global patent portfolio boasts more than 48,000 inventions. The
creativity of our employees and the strategic management of our patent
portfolio provide the foundation for our strong competitive position. A
company-wide IP* intellectual property initiative is driving our efforts to
systematically safeguard our innovations and leverage our patents in the
face of global competition. A large number of patent exchange and licens-
ing agreements testify to the success of our patent portfolio. These agree-
ments provide uniimited access to all key markets and support the entire
innovation process ~ to the benefit of our customers.
www.siemens.com/intellectual_property
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Other

9,000 =2%
Asia-Patific
52,000 =12% X
o -

The Americas

Germany
164,000 = 38%

Europe
{excluding Germany)

95,000 = 22%

University degrees
141,000 = 33%
Engineers

and scientists
103,000 = 24%

110,000 = 26%

Yocational training
ar apprenticeship

158,000 =~ 37%

Unrelated
qualifications or
no prior training

131,000 = 30%

Employees worldwide

At the end of fiscal 2004, Siemens had 430,000 employees worldwide.,
Of this total, 62% (266,000) worked outside Germany. Germany account-
ed for 38% (164,000), the other European countries for 26% (110,000),
the Americas for 22% (95,000), Asia-Pacific for 12% (52,000), and Africa,
the Middle East and the C.I.5. countries for about 2% (9,000).

Women at Siemens

Women comprise some 27% (117,000) of our global workforce. Twenty
percent of the women employed at Siemens hold university degrees,

of which 10,600 are in technical or scientific fields. In fiscal 2004, 34%
{15,300) of all new hires worldwide were women. At the end of the fiscal
year, women occupied about 10% (5,800) of our managerial positions.

Developing our people’s competencies

With an investment of more than €400 million, our commitment to the
education of young people and the training of our employees remained
unwavering in fiscal 2004. Some 40% of the total flowed into vocational
training and about 60% into business-oriented continuing education. Our
vocational training programs span about 30 professions and courses of
study. Some 11,000 young people worldwide are currently enrolled in
Siemens apprenticeship or work-study programs.

Employee qualifications

Over two-thirds of our 430,000 employees have professional qualifica-
tions. Thirty-three percent (141,000) hold university degrees. Twenty-four
percent (103,000) are engineers or scientists. Another 37% (158,000)
have earned a vocational school diploma or completed an apprenticeship.
Slightly less than one-third (131,000) have qualifications unrelated to their
work or are without any prior professional training.

New hires

In fiscal 2004, we hired 44,700 employees worldwide, 33% of whom hold
university degrees. Just over two-thirds (10,300) of our university-trained
new hires are engineers or scientists. As these figures attest, we continue
to boast a highly qualified workforce.




AT A GLANCE

Group Presidents”

| L

Udo Niehage, Hans M. Johann Lothar Adrian v, Jjoergen Ole Klaus
Dr-Ing. Schabert Lottner Pauly Hammerstein Haslestad Voges
PTD RE L&A Com 585 1& PG
Wolfgang Erich R, Reinhardt, Wolf-Dieter Bapst, Hatmut Heinrich Herbert
Dehen Prof. Dr.-Ing. Dr.oec. publ. Gierse Hiesinger, Lohneif},
SV Med QOsram A&D Dr.-lng. Dr.rer.nat.
SBT SFS

* As of January 1, 2005
For further information, see pages 84 -85,
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RECORT @F THE SUPERVISEORY BRARE

Dear shareholders,

The Supervisory Board of Siemens AG focused intensively on

the Company’s situation and prospects th mgﬁ it fiscal 2004,
The Managing Board provided us with timely and comprehen-
sive information on a regular basis. We were invelved in major

Company decisions, We also advised the Managing Board and

2

nitored Company management.

5

At five meetings during (he course of fsca: 2004, the Managing
Board reporied (@ Us on the Company’s strategy and plans, on
business and financial developments and on key business
events. The Managing Board also informed ws in welting aboug
imporant developmen(s that teok place between | et
Ings. As Chalrman of the Supervisory Board, | was kept up-io-
@ﬂaﬁ@ on maym J‘www amﬂ m@( @Dlnﬁjul@ mmmcn umm (m J&ﬂm%

Q@m;g)@m s strate 7@ Jﬂm [@unom and ﬂ)XBMDmm, ]m
o further optimize sur business portfolio, the chgl! ;
opportunities facing us In key reglons, progress ?rc\b)@ i by € Uh@
individual Stemens Groups and maiters relaling (o corporale
governance. This year, generational change in the Company’s
top Mmenagement was alse on the agenda.

241
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Busimess slralegy and personne p@ﬂ:‘@ﬁ@@a

Al the April 2004 meeting of the Supervisory Board, the Prest

deni of the Maneging Board and (’“h”w ,D@N@BMH@E@ e

reporied on Company

polfcies. The followlng iss

2 Slemens’ aim bs to be w\c,rzpmﬂ
and clectronics with higl pr
and prograns are focused on

o The Company’s business pot
mized within the framewor
som, we are making targeted &
vidual segments, particular

o Inour Stemens Management Sy &wﬂ - which mc udies the
op* programs innovation, Customer Focus and Global Com-
petitiveness as well a8 o aumber of related inlilaiives = we
have defined the key action arcas for driving Compamny
growih in the next fow years,

O We are bringing personnel meragement into Bne with th
Company's business sireiegy «nd business policles. In the Wa
fow Wﬂ u}'ﬂ@ nﬂmmmqmq, pw l?ra@g revamped our systems

lopraent to take into geeawnt

m of our eetivities,

LD

Slemens has developed a cle
and consisicnt management sy
ongoing globalization.
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Regione) focws
The Superyt wm Board discusses Sler bl
electronies and electrica] engline

meeting. In 2004, we forused on the @,@\@@\W uinities presented

by the \t,umm;mum Union’s casiward expansion and on the reor-
ganization of vur sales and service activities In Germany, The

Managing Board explatned fis reasons for combi
independent Group activites into one Reglonal Org
Germany. This new wnit, which employs 20,000 people, began
operaions at the siart of fscal 2005 with ihe alm of expanding
business and improving customer proximity. The Supervisory
Board 1s convineed (hat this organizational change is a key step
toward re-achieving growth in the long stagnant German mar-
Ret.

Slemens’ performance in the United States, the sorld's langest
electrical market, is considered at every meeting of the Super
visory Board. This year, we also teceived special reports on the
Company’s position fn Asle-Pactile (November 2003} and in
Latin America (November 2004). The Company Is well-anchored
im both reglons, and new growih-generating measures have
been Initlated,

viously

il

Group-speciifc topies

Traditionaly, Supervisory Board mectings are devoied not enly
i matters affecting the Company as a whole. We also give the
Individual Groups an eppeortunity (o explain thelr scifvities in

detall. This enables the members of the Supervisory Board (o
evaluate the speellie challenges facing each of the Company’s

operaling unis.




%)

REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

Between November 200

and Services, and Osrm
Techmologies, and F"rum

Aulon:

Systems (July 2004); -
§ utio:

Services, Medical $ol
{Novemls

er 2004), Al these meeting
loples:
o € Networks and IC mm@ h@\z © Wea

in thelr industry

“h@hrr mru kel Prosence, ﬁihm iy
@@@JMV ﬂr a @(ﬂ# o vowm um p Q

gf@@“ mc ]%O)Cﬁiﬁ&ﬂ%‘ md
faced special problems

menis. They are naoy

has enabled [ndusirial Sol

anuther promising m mﬂawﬂk@u
o Auviemation and I

Awmm e, @wa R

Slemer [ Services

13 and |
Groups reported o JP' 8\@ pervis

rARSM «aﬂom and D
2004 )3 1C Networks, 1C Mobile, and 1

mation mg,
DS, And

1 e
ihe necessary rest mmwﬁn@
L@a&k 0]

fves, Medical Solutions, Siem

November 2004, the following
Oy Board: Industrial Sol
2003); Stemens Buliding
fstribution (Apsti
s and Assembly

fons

Stemens YDO Auf
4, we discusse

0o

d L’)(D@ following

hered the struclural crisis
ihe ﬁmmwﬂm@ convergence of
o an@\ i ((DLT@@U‘ fo strengthen
bined vn

ﬂ/@% Growp.

Stemens Buliding Technolo-
JUEW Systems = all of which have
st flew years - have completed
&@mw md process improve-

1

nsmission and Distribution,

posted ou

dolng everything Lm CaM Lo LS

SUCCESs,
o Stemens B

Business

Taken &s 2 whole, our Growps
w]
probiems at Transporiation Sys®

in earnings compared (o fs

regisiered its sailsf

Services @
working (o achieve lasiing 1
ance gs rapldly as possible,

e all
ed (o

it
1“ of their

d Power Genet .a,tLlﬂ@ i
ese Groups &

ure tihe sust

et
BROVEI

poriaiion Sysiems are
tenis in thelr perform-

nosied 4 dovble-digh increase
(303, despite acute projeci-related
ms. The Supervisory Board

$ result.




REPERYT OF THE SUPERVISERY BRARD

The Supervisory Board regularly deals with the furiher develop-
ment of (he Company's corperaic governance principles. In his
contest, we have glso concerned ourselves with ihe Gon ‘s
compliance organization.

Al our meeting on November 26, 2003, we adopicd new s
for the Supervisory Board and its commitiees. These bylaws have
been revised to ake into account the corporaie governanee provi:
slons of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOA) and the revised version of
the German Corporate Governance Code of May 21, 2003

We have determined that Stemens - in accordance with the
Company's Declaraiion of Conformity of November 12, 2003 -
complied with the reecommendations of ihe German Corporate
Governance Cade in fiscal 2004, Slemens will now disclose the
remuneraiion paid io members of the Supervisory and Managing
Boards In fiscal 2004 on an individualized basis. As stated In the
new Declaraiion of Gonfermity, which we approved at our meet-
ing on November 10, 2004, Slemens now complies wi It
one of the Code’s recommendations: Our directors and officers
Ilalbiiity (D&O) Insurance policy has no deductible,

The Supervisory Board met in April and November 2004 with-
out the Menaging Board In attendaree. At these meetings, we
deglt with the eoperationg] efficiency of the Supervisory Board and
with the division of duifes between she full Supervisory Board

An overview of our corporste governance rules and practices
and & detalled report on the level and structure of remuneration
pald (o members of the Supervisory and Managing Boards
appear on pages 30-41 and 42 - 49 in this repert and on the
Internet.
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5

Fimancial stalements

Our independen? audiiors, KPMEG Deutsche Trevhand-Gesellschal
AG WirtsehafisprOiungsgesellschalt, Berlin and Irenkiurt; Main
(RPMG), audited the ennuel finencia) statements of Siemens AG
and the consolidated financia sistements of Siemens woridwide as
well as (he related management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A)
for fscal 2004, tn accordance with the requirements of the German
Commerelal Code (1168, and approved them without gualifics-
ton. The consolidated Mnencial statements, prepard in aeeor-
dance with 1.8, GAAR, were sudited by KPMG fn sccordance with
ihe auditing principles of the 1.8, PCAOR, KPMG also confirmed
that the consolidaied finanelal siatements and MD&A fulfill the
conditions for esemption from compliance with reporting rules
under German law, and that the Managing Board has implemented
an effective risk manegement systen Uhal meets all relevant iegal
requirements.

The Managing Board provided us with the above-meniioned
dacuments and ity proposal (or ihe appropriation of net income in
& tmely manner. The Audit Committes thoroughly examined
these documents, and the Supervisory Board also reviewed them.
The KPMG audit reports were presenied to all members of the
Supervisory Board, snd we examined the reports theroughly at our
meeting on November 24, 2004, n the presence of ihe independ-
ent auditors, who reported on the malin Bndings of thelr audit. The
Munaging Buard explained the annual and consolidated fnancial
statements as well as the risk menagement sysiem. 1¢ also provided
& detalied report on the scope, focal poinis and costs of the audii.
As & resuldt of the definiive Mndings of the esamination by the
Audit Commitiee and the full Supervisory Board, we ralsed no
objecilons. I view of our approval, the financlal staiements &
aceepted as submitted.

We endorse (he Managing Board's propuosal that the net income
avalleble lor distribution he used to pay out a dividend of €1.25
per shase entliled to 8 dividend. In addition, we approve the
praposal that the amount attribuable to treasury stock be carried
forward.

h

)

)
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Im this contest, changes were also made in the assignment of
responsibilities w other Managing Buard members. The current
breakdown of responsibitiies is shown In the organization chart
at the end of this Report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Good corporate governance has traditionally been a high priority at
Siemens. We continue to welcome the ongoing corporate governance
initiatives within and outside of Germany.

The German framework )

The German Corporate Governance Code (the Codex), first issued
in 2002, was expanded in May 2003. Siemens complies with this
expanded version in all but one respect: our directors and officers
liability (D&O) insurance policy does not include a deductible for
Managing Board and Supervisory Board members. Our senior man-
agers, both in and outside Germany, are covered by a group insur-
ance policy. It is not considered appropriate to differentiate hetween
board members and other high-level personnel. Furthermore, such
a deductible is not common outside Germany.

Our Declaration of Conformity, set forth below (on page 41 of this
Report), is posted on our website and updated as necessary. Siemens
voluntarily complies with all of the Codex’s non-obligatory sugges-
tions, with only minor exceptions. Specific details may.be found at
the Corporate Governance section of our website.

U.S. capital market rules
Due to our listing on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), we are
subject to certain U.S. capital markets laws and regulations of the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and rules of the NYSE. In
July 2002, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOA) became U.S. law. The SOA
aims to strengthen investor protection and restore confidence in the
U.S. capital markets. To those ends, the SOA - together with associat-
ed SEC and NYSE rules - introduced numerous changes in corporate
governance regulations for all companies listed in the U.S.
To facilitate our compliance with the SOA, we have, among other
Disclosure Committee things, established a Disclosure Committee (comprised of eight cen-
tral department heads) that is responsible for reviewing and approv-
ing certain financial and non-financial information before we make
it public. We have also introduced procedures that require the respec-
tive managements of our Groups and subsidiaries to certify certain
Certification procedure matters, as discussed below. These procedures, and certifications
provide a basis on which the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the
Chief Financial Officer (CFQO) of Siemens AG certify our financial
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statements to the SEC, as required by the SOA. Pursuant to the

requirements of the SOA, Siemens has conformed the Bylaws of the

Audit Committee of its Supervisory Board, revised its procedures www.siemens.com/
governing its relationship to the Company's independent auditors, corporate_governance
implemented procedures for handling complaints related to account-

ing practices and introduced a Code of Ethics for Financial Matters.

Management and control structure - The Supervisory Board Management and R agement
As a German stock corporation with registered offices in Berlin and

Munich, Siemens is subject to German corporate law. Consequently,
the Company has a two-tier management and oversight structure
consisting of a Managing Board and a Supervisory Board. The Super-
visory Board has twenty members. As stipulated by the German Co-
determination Act (the Co-determination Act), one-half of the Board’s
members represent Company shareholders, and one-half represent
Company employees. The shareholder representatives are elected

by the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. The employee representatives
are elected by an assembly representing Siemens’ employees in Business Conduct Financial
Germany. Seven of the employee representatives must be Siemens and oo of Ethic et
group employees, and three must be external representatives nomi-

nated by certain German unions. According to the Bylaws of the

Supervisory Board, the shareholder representatives must be inde-

pendent. Some Supervisory Board members hold, or held in the past

year, high-ranking positions at other companies. Siemens maintains

normal business relationships with almost all of these companies.

However, our sales of products and/or services to them are transacted

on arm’s length hases. Furthermore, the volumes of these respective

sales are quite small in relation to each of the companies’ total sales.

Consequently, we believe that these dealings do not compromise the

independence of our Supervisory Board members associated with

these companies.

—
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IDuties of the
ISupervisory Board

Committees of the
Supervisory Board

Chairman’s Committee

The Supervisory Board is elected for five years. It normally meets
five times each year and regularly convenes in executive session
without the Managing Board in attendance. The duties, procedures
and committees of the Supervisory Board are specified in its bylaws.
These bylaws contain rules regarding, among other things, the inde-
pendence, experience and knowledge required of Supervisory Board
members and rules regarding conflicts of interest.

The Supervisory Board oversees and advises the Managing Board
in its management of Company business. At regular intervals, it
discusses business development, planning, strategy and implemen-
tation. It also reviews Siemens’ quarterly reports and approves the
annual, stand-alone financial statements of Siemens AG as well as
the consolidated financial statements of Siemens, taking into account
both the audit reports provided by the independent auditors and the
results of the review conducted by the Audit Committee. In addition,
the Supervisory Board appoints the members of the Managing Board
and allocates members’ individual duties. Important Managing
Board decisions - such as major acquisitions, divestments and finan-
cial measures - require Supervisory Board approval.

Committees of the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board’s Bylaws establish four committees, whose
duties, responsibilities and procedures fulfill the requirements of the
Codex, reflect applicable SOA requirements and incorporate applica-
ble NYSE rules, as well as certain NYSE rules not mandatorily applica-
ble to Siemens AG. Committee bylaws are posted on our website.

The Chairman’s Committee, comprising two shareholder repre-
sentatives and one employee representative, performs the collective
tasks of nominating, compensation and corporate governance com-
mittees. It meets at least five times each year without the Managing
Board in attendance. The Chairman’s Committee determines the
conditions of employment of Managing Board members and the
level and structure of their remuneration, including what part of the
Managing Board’s total compensation will take the form of stock-
based compensation. In addition, the Chairman’s Committee makes
proposals regarding the appointment of Managing Board members.
Finally, it reviews and ensures the further development of Siemens’
corporate governance principles.
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The Audit Committee consists of three shareholder representa- Audit Committee
tives and two employee representatives. The SOA requires that all
members of our Audit Committee must be independent, as provided
in the SOA, no later than July 31, 2005. Nevertheless, SEC rules pro-
vide a limited exemption from this requirement for the employee
representatives, to the extent that they are employees of the Compa-
ny and elected in accordance with the Co-determination Act. The
Audit Committee oversees the appropriateness and the effectiveness
of the Company’s external and internal accounting processes, meet-
ing at least five times each year. The Audit Committee and the inde-
pendent auditors also review the Company’s financial statements
prepared quarterly and annually by management. On the basis of the
independent auditors’ report on its review of the annual financial
statements, the Audit Committee makes a recommendation to the
Supervisory Board whether or not it should approve those financial
statements. In addition, the Audit Committee oversees the Compa-
ny’s internal control system and its procedures for assessing, moni-
toring and managing risk. It also monitors statutory and regulatory
compliance. The Company's Financial Audit Department reports reg-
ularly to the Audit Committee, which determines the scope and focal
points of its financial audit. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for liaising between the Company and its independent auditors.

In particular, it awards the annual audit contract to the independent
auditors appointed at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting and initially
determines the focal points of their audit, as well as their fee. In addi-
tion, the Audit Committee monitors the independence, qualifica-
tions, rotation and performance of the independent auditors.

In accordance with the requirements of the SOA, the Supervisory Financial experts of
Board has determined that Dr. Josef Ackermann, Dr. Karl-Hermann the Audit Committee
Baumann and Dr. Henning Schulte-Noelle qualify to serve as Audit
Committee financial experts.

The Mediation Committee comprises two shareholder represen-
tatives and two employee representatives. In the event that the
Supervisory Board cannot reach the two-thirds majority required
to appoint a Managing Board member, the Mediation Committee
submits proposals for resolution to the Supervisory Board.

The Ownership Rights Committee (formerly called the Invest-
ment Committee), comprising three shareholder representatives, is
responsible for decisions regarding the exercise of Siemens’ share-
holder rights in other companies.

‘33’
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Duties of the
Managing Board

The Managing Board

The Managing Board of Siemens AG, which currently has twelve
members, is the Company’s top management body. It is obligated to
promote the interests of the Company at all times and to drive sus-
tainable growth in company value. Since October 2004, its Corporate
Executive Committee has ten members (effective January 27, 2005,

it will have nine members). The President and CEO defines overall
Company policies in cooperation with the Corporate Executive Com-
mittee. The Managing Board’s responsibilities include determining
the Company’s strategic orientation, planning and finalizing the
Company budget, allocating resources, and monitoring the executive
management of each Group. Furthermore, the Managing Board is
responsible for the preparation of the Company’s quarterly reports;
the annual, stand-alone financial statements of Siemens AG and the
consolidated financial statements of Siemens. It also appoints per-
sonnel to fill key Company positions.

The Managing Board cooperates closely with the Supervisory
Board. It informs the Supervisory Board regularly, promptly and
comprehensively regarding all issues related to Company strategy
and strategy implementation, planning, business development,
financial position, earnings and risks. Major decisions of the Manag-
ing Board require Supervisory Board approval.

Shareholder relations

Four times each year - at dates specified in our financial calendar -
Siemens AG reports to its shareholders regarding its business devel-
opment, financial position and earnings. The CEO and the CFO
report to investors, analysts and the press regarding the quarterly
and full-year results. Information which may materially affect
Siemens’ share price is published in press releases throughout the
year.

An ordinary Annual Shareholders’ Meeting normally takes place
within the first four months of each fiscal year, with each share carry-
ing one vote. All shareholders listed in the stock register and from
whom notification of attendance has been received by a specified
date are entitled to participate. The Managing Board facilitates share-
holder participation in the meeting through the use of electronic
means of communication - in particular the Internet - and enables
shareholders who are unable to attend the meeting to exercise their
voting rights by communicating instructions directly to their repre-
sentatives. In connection with the January 2005 Annual Sharehold-
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ers’ Meeting, for the first time shareholders may receive their notice
of the meeting electronically. The meeting is directed by the Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board.

The Annual Shareholders’ Meeting decides on all matters assigned Annual Shareholders'
to it by law. Its decisions are binding on all shareholders and on the Meeting
Company. They include, in particular, voting on the appropriation of
net income, ratification of the acts of the Managing and Supervisory
Boards, and the appointment of the independent auditors. Amend-
ments to the Articles of Association and measures which change the
Company's capital stock are approved exclusively at the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting and implemented by the Managing Board
with the approval of the Supervisory Board. Shareholders may submit
counter-proposals to the proposals of the Managing and Supervisory
Boards and may contest decisions of the Annual Shareholders’ Meet-
ing. Shareholders owning Siemens stock with an aggregate par value
of €1 million or more may also demand a special judicial review of a
particular decision.

As part of our investor relations activities, the CEQ, the CFO and Investor relations
individual members of the Group executive managements meet regu- activities
larly with analysts and institutional investors. We hold a conference
for analysts once a year as well as telephone conferences with ana-
lysts upon the publication of our quarterly results. Our website pro-
vides access to financial data and other business-related information
regarding Siemens.

Risk management
The Company has a system for assessing and monitoring its potential
business and financial risks. The components of this risk manage- Monitaring and
ment system are designed to help enable us to anticipate risks and to risk management
manage them carefully in the pursuit of our business goals. The
principles, guidelines, processes and responsibilities of our internal
control system have been defined and established to help ensure
prompt and accurate accounting of all business transactions and to
continuously provide reliable information about the Company’s
financial position for internal and external use.
However, the components of the internal control and risk manage-
ment system do not eliminate risk entirely and, thus, cannot prevent
loss or fraud in all cases. We intend to rapidly adjust the risk manage-
ment and monitoring procedures of all businesses acquired during
the fiscal year, so that they conform to Siemens’ standards.
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Preparation of financial
statements

Further development
of our internal control
system

Financial accounting

The consolidated financial statements of Siemens worldwide are
prepared in accordance with the United States Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (U.S. GAAP), as permitted by the German
Commercial Code. The annual, stand-alone financial statements of
Siemens AG are prepared in accordance with the accounting rules set
out in the German Commercial Code. The Managing Board directs
the preparation of the financial statements. The existing internal
control system and the Company-wide use of uniform guidelines
help to ensure the accuracy of our financial statements. In addition,
we have established a system of internal certification by which the
executive management of each of our Groups and subsidiaries certi-
fies, among other things, the accuracy of their reports to the Manag-
ing Board, including that such reports fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows
of the reporting entity. They also certify that such management has
reviewed the reporting entity’s disclosure controls and procedures
and concluded that they were effective as of the end of the period
covered by the relevant report.

This system is a basis for the statements of certification that must
be signed by the CEO and the CFO and submitted to the SEC with the
annual report on Form 20-F, in accordance with the SOA require-
ments. In those statements, the CEO and the CFO certify the accuracy
of the statements in the annual report, including that the financial
statements fairly present (in all material respects) the financial con-
dition, results of operations and cash flows of Siemens. They also
certify (1) that the effectiveness of Siemens’ system of disclosure
controls and procedures has been evaluated, (2) that they have pre-
sented in this report on Form 20-F their conclusions related to this
evaluation and (3) that they have disclosed in this report any change
in the company’s internal controls over financial reporting that
occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company’s
internal controls over financial reporting.

Additional SOA requirements, which will come into effect for
Siemens in fiscal 2005, mandate that we include in our management
report on internal controls the conclusions of management about the
effectiveness of Siemens’ internal controls over financial reporting,
based on management’s review of those controls. The additional
requirements also demand that the independent auditors provide
an “attestation” regarding the management’s assessmernt.
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Business Conduct Guidelines and Code of Ethics

Siemens is committed to conducting its business responsibly and in
compliance with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Managing Board has established firm guidelines to help ensure
that this goal is achieved. The Business Conduct Guidelines comprise
rules regarding compliance with applicable laws, conflicts of interest,
the use of Company assets and facilities, and insider trading. These
rules are binding for all Siemens employees, the Managing Board
and the Supervisory Board. The Guidelines also specify procedures
for dealing with complaints. A compliance officer, who reports to the Compliance Officer
Audit Committee, processes all complaints, including those submit-
ted anonymously. In accordance with the requirements of the SOA,
procedures for handling potential complaints related to accounting
practices, and procedures for handling relevant complaints from spe-
cific attorneys (internal and external) have been implemented dur-
ing fiscal 2004. In addition, the Managing Board and the Supervisory
Board have implemented a Code of Ethics for Financial Matters, as
required by the SOA rules. Both the Business Conduct Guidelines and
the Code of Ethics for Financial Matters are available on our website.

Significant differences from NYSE Corporate Governance
Standards

Companies listed on the NYSE are subject to the Corporate Gover-
nance Standards of Section 303A (the NYSE Standards) of the NYSE
Listed Company Manual. Under the NYSE Standards, Siemens AG,

as a foreign private issuer, is permitted to follow its home-country
corporate governance practices in lieu of the NYSE Standards, except
that it is required to comply with the NYSE Standards relating to

the having of an audit committee (comprised of members who are
“independent” under the SOA) and to certain NYSE notification obli-
gations. In addition, the NYSE Standards require that foreign private
issuers disclose any significant ways in which their corporate gover-
nance practices differ from those required of U.S. domestic compa-
nies under the NYSE Standards.

As a company incorporated in Germany, Siemens'AG generally
follows German corporate governance principles, particularly those
set forth in the German Stock Corporation Act (the Stock Corporation
Act), the Co-determination Act and the Codex.

The significant differences between our governance practices and
those of domestic NYSE issuers are as follows:
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Two-Tier Board

The Stock Corporation Act requires Siemens AG to have a two-tier
board structure consisting of a Managing Board and a Supervisory
Board which is not comparable to the one-tier (or unitary) board
system in the U.S. The two-tier system provides a strict separation
of management and supervision. Roles and responsibilities of each
of the two boards are clearly defined by law.

The composition of the Supervisory Board is determined in accor-
dance with the Co-determination Act, which requires that one-half
of the required 20 Supervisory Board members must be elected by
our domestic employees. In the event of a tie vote at the Supervisory
Board, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board is entitled to cast a
deciding vote.

Independence

Under this two-tier board system, our methods for determining and
ensuring the independence of our Supervisory Board differ from
those of the NYSE Standards, which generally contemplate a U.S.-
style, one-tier system. In contrast to the NYSE Standards, which
require the board to affirmatively determine the independence of the
individual directors with reference to specific tests of independence,
German law does not require the Supervisory Board to make such
affirmative findings on an individual basis. At the same time, the
Bylaws of our Supervisory Board contain several provisions to help
ensure the independence of the Supervisory Board’s advice and
supervision. Furthermore, the members of the Supervisory and Man-
aging Boards are strictly independent from one another; a member
of one board is legally prohibited from being concurrently active on
the other. Supervisory Board members have independent decision -
making authority and are legally prohibited from following the direc-
tion or instruction of any affiliated party. Moreover, Supervisory
Board members may not enter into advisory, service or certain other
contracts with Siemens, unless approved by the Supervisory Board.
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Committees

The NYSE Standards require the creation of several specified board
committees composed of independent directors and operating pur-
suant to written charters that set forth their tasks and responsibili-
ties. The Supervisory Board of Siemens AG has created several com-
mittees. In addition, both the Audit Committee and the Chairman’s
Committee have written bylaws - adopted by the Supervisory Board
based on the NYSE Standards - addressing their respective purposes
and responsibilities. Nevertheless, German law precludes certain
responsibilities from being delegated to a committee, such as the
selection of the independent auditors, who are required by German
law to be elected at the shareholders’ meeting. The independence

of the members of our Supervisory Board committees is governed
by the independence standards, set forth above, applicable to Super-
visory Board members.

Collectively, our Supervisory Board committees are responsible
for many of the same functions as the committees required under
the NYSE Standards. Yet, while the tasks performed by committees
meeting the NYSE Standards and the committees formed by Siemens
AG are similar in the aggregate, the specific division of the various
tasks among the committees differs.

For example, our Chairman's Committee performs many of the
tasks that nominating, corporate governance and compensation
committees perform under the NYSE Standards - such as, making
recommendations to the Supervisory Board on the appointment and
dismissal of members of the Managing Board, determining the Man-
aging Board's employment framework and remuneration, and corpo-
rate governance issues.

Qur Audit Commiittee is subject to the standards of the SOA and
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as applicable to a foreign private
issuer, and it performs functions similar to those of an audit commuit-
tee under the NYSE Standards.

As discussed above, Siemens AG also has an Ownership Rights
Committee and a Mediation Committee, the latter of which is
required by German law. Neither is required under the NYSE Stand-
ards.
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Shareholder Approval of Equity Compensation Plans;

Stock Repurchases

The NYSE Standards generally require U.S. domestic companies to
obtain shareholder approval of all equity-compensation plans
(including stock option plans) and any material revisions to them.
Our adoption of stock option plans and any material revisions there-
to require the approval by our shareholders in so far as the issuance
of shares and/or stock options under authorized or contingent capi-
tal authorizations requires shareholder approval (which approval
requires consideration of the key elements of the applicable option
plan or relevant modifications). The 2001 Siemens Stock Option Plan
was so approved in 2001. Similarly, before we may repurchase our
shares in the market(s), any such buy-back - as well as our use of
such repurchased shares for, among other things, offers to members
of the Managing Board and/or our employees - generally requires
our shareholders’ approval. Such approval was provided during our
January 22, 2004 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting and such matters
will generally be voted upon annually.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

Various documents pertaining to our corporate governance - includ-
ing Siemens’ Articles of Association, the Bylaws of the Supervisory
Board and those of its committees, and the report on our fulfillment
of the requirements of the Codex - may be found on our internet
website at www.siemens.com/corporate_governance. The informa-
tion on our website is not incorporated by reference into this Report.
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Declaration of Conformity with the Codex Declaration
At their meetings on November 9 and 10, 2004, respectively, the of Conformity
Managing Board and the Supervisory Board approved the following

Declaration of Conformity pursuant to § 161 of the German Stock

Corporation Act:

Siemens AG has fully complied with the recommendations of the
German Corporate Governance Code (“Codex”) - in the version of
May 21, 2003 - except in the respects identified in our declaration
of November 12, 2003 (Managing Board compensation not reported
on an individualized basis, our D&O insurance without a deductible);
and will fully comply with such recommendations of the Codex,
except in one respect (our D&O insurance without a deductible).

Berlin and Munich, November 10, 2004

Siemens AG
The Managing Board The Supervisory Board
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Compensation Report

This report outlines the principles used for determining the compen-
sation of the Managing Board of Siemens AG and sets out the level
and structure of Managing Board remuneration.

In addition, the report describes the policies and levels of compen-
sation paid to Supervisory Board members and gives details of stock
ownership by members of the Managing and Supervisory Boards.

1. Managing Board remuneration

The Chairman’s Committee of the Supervisory Board is responsible
for determining the remuneration of members of the Managing
Board. The Committee comprises Dr. Karl-Hermann Baumann (Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board), and Dr. Josef Ackermann and Mr. Ralf
Heckmann (both Deputy Chairmen of the Supervisory Board).

The remuneration of members of the Managing Board of Siemens
AG is based on the Company’s size and global presence, its economic
and financial position, and the level and structure of managing board
compensation at comparable companies in and outside Germany. In
addition, the compensation for each Board member reflects his or her
responsibilities and performance. The level of compensation is
designed to be competitive in the international market for highly
qualified executives in a high-performance culture.

The Managing Board remuneration is performance-related. In
fiscal year 2004 it had three components: a fixed salary, a variable
bonus, and stock-based compensation. The fixed salary and the bonus
are based on a target compensation that comprises 50 percent fixed
and 50 percent variable remuneration. The target compensation is
reviewed regularly every two to three years on the basis of an analysis
of the compensation paid by international peer companies to their
top managers. The last review was conducted on April 1, 2003.

The remuneration of the Managing Board members is composed
as follows:

O The fixed compensation is paid as a monthly salary.

O The bonus is based on the Company’s attainment of certain EVA
targets and other financial goals, if any, that are set at the start of
the fiscal year by the Chairman’s Committee of the Supervisory
Board. One half of the bonus is paid as an annual bonus which is
contingent upon achieving the Company-wide EVA target estab-
lished for the fiscal year. The other half is granted as a long-term
bonus (LT bonus) whose amount depends on the average attain-
ment of EVA targets over a three-year period. The annual bonus
and the LT bonus may not exceed 250 percent of the base amount
applicable to the variable compensation component. One half of
the LT bonus is paid in cash. The other half is in the form of a com-
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mitment to issue or transfer shares of Siemens AG (stock awards)
which will be settled four years after the commitment is made.

The same principles for determining the bonus apply to Managing
Board members who are not members of the Corporate Executive
Committee. Their goals, however, depend primarily on the finan-
cial performance of the corporate units they lead.

O The third component of Managing Board remuneration for fiscal
year 2004 is stock-based compensation determined by the Chair-
man’s Committee of the Supervisory Board, one half of which con-
sists of stock options issued under the terms of the 2001 Siemens
Stock Option Plan as authorized by shareholders at the Annual
Shareholders’ Meeting of Siemens AG on February 22, 2001, and
the other half consists of a commitment to issue or transfer shares
of Siemens AG (stock awards).

At its meeting on November 10, 2004, the Chairman’s Committee
of the Supervisory Board determined the bonus amounts and the
number of stock awards and stock options to be granted, after
assessing the attainment of the goals set at the start of the fiscal year.
As aresult, cash compensation amounted to €26.7 million (2003:
€275 million) and total remuneration amounted to €33.4 million
(2003: €30.7 million), representing a decrease of 2.9 percent and an
increase of 8.8 percent, respectively.

The following compensation was determined for members of the
Managing Board for fiscal year 2004:

Cash Fair value of stock-
(Expressed in €) compensation  based compensation Total
Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer 3,560,053 1,077,993 4,638,046
Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld 2,679,904 641,286 3,321,190
Johannes Feldmayer ’ 2,339,465 719,638 3,059,103
Prof. Dr. Edward G. Krubasik 2,278,056 719,638 2,997,694
Heinz-Joachim Neubirger 2,260,585 . 719,638 2,980,223
Dr. Jurgen Radomiski 2,252,307 719,638 2,971,945
Dr. Uriel J, Sharef 2,264,607 719,638 2,984,245
Prof. Dr. Kiaus Wucherer 2,261,306 719,638 2,980,944
Thomas Ganswindt'? 1,634,261 149,990 1,784,251
Rudi Lamprecht® 1,741,472 149,990 1,891,462
Prof. Dr. Erich R. Reinhardt® 1,823,818 149,990 1,973,808
Prof. Or. Claus Weyrich® 1,649,402 129,989 1,779,391
Total ) 26,745,236 6,617,066 33,362,302

@ The fair values of stock-based compensation shown in this table relate to stock options and stock awards granted in November 2004 for fiscal
year 2004. The values do not correspond to the figures presented in the Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements (pages 162 ff. of the
Siemens Annual Report 2004) because, in accordance with accounting rules, the amounts disctosed for fiscal year 2004 as a component
of Managing Board remuneration represent the values of stock options issued during the fiscal year in November 2003. In addition, part
of the expense of stock-based compensation is to be recorded over the service period.

@ Deputy members of the Managing Board.
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The following table describes the details of cash compensation:

Cash compensation

Annual LT bonus
(Expressed in €) Salary bonus  cash portion Other® Total
Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer 1,215,000 1,581,250 738,078 25,725 3,560,053
Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld 762,627 883,116 510,387 523,774 2,679,904
Johannes Feldmayer 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 108,586 2,339,465
Prof. Dr. Edward G. Krubasik 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 47,177 2,278,056
Heinz-Joachim Neublrger 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 29,706 2,260,585
Dr. Jirgen Radomski 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 21,428 2,252,307
Dr. Uriel J. Sharef 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 33,728 2,264,607
Prof. Dr. Klaus Wucherer 755,040 1,006,200 469,639 30,427 2,261,306
Thomas Ganswindt'? 500,040 602,617 480,380 51,224 1,634,261
Rudi Lamprecht® 550,020 575,240 589,982 26,230 1,741,472
Prof. Dr. Erich R. Reinhardt® 500,040 607,153 686,692 29,933 1,823,818
Prof. Dr. Claus Weyrich® 450,000 606,250 565,922 27,230 1,649,402
Total 8,507,967 10,892,826 6,389,275 955,168 | 26,745,236

" Non-cash benefits in the form of company cars, subsidized insurance, accomodation and moving expenses.
@ Deputy members of the Managing Board.

Both the number and the values of the stock-based compensation
component are shown in the following table. The fair value of the
stock options was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. Because a cap was placed on stock options granted to Manag-
ing Board members, disclosure of stock options in the financial state-
ments depends on their intrinsic value, which was zero on the grant
date. Without a cap the fair value would have been €4.54 per option,
which amount was taken as a basis in this table. The stock awards
were recorded at the market price of the Siemens share on the date of
commitment less the present value of dividends expected during the
holding period, because awards are not eligible to receive dividends.
The resulting value amounted to €55.63.

The members of the Managing Board received a total of 94,769
stock awards and 296,270 stock options, representing 7.8 percent and
10.1 percent, respectively, of the aggregate stock awards and stock
options granted for fiscal year 2004.
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Accordingly, stock-based compensation was as follows:

Stock-based compensation

Number of units Fair value

Stock Stock

awards  Other awards  Other
(Expressed in number from LT stock Stock fromLT  stock Stock
of units or €) bonus®  awards® options®| bonus®  awards®  options? Total
Dr. Heinrich v. Pierer 13,266 3,056 37,445| 737,988 170,005 170,000}1,077,993
Dr. Klaus Kleinfeld 6,674 2,427 29,7351 371,275 135014 134,997 641,286
Johannes Feldmayer 8,442 2,247 27.535| 469,628 125001 125009| 719,638

Prof. Dr. Edward G. Krubasik 8,442 2,247 27,535 469,628 125,001 125,009) 719,638
Heinz-loachim Neublrger 8,442 2,247 27,535| 469,628 125,001 125,009 719,638

Dr. Jiirgen Radomski 8,442 2,247 27,535] 469,628 125,001 125,009] 719,638
Dr. Uriel J. Sharef 8,442 2,247 27,535 469,628 125,001 125,009 719,638
Prof, Dr. Klaus Wucherer 8,442 2,247 27,535 | 469,628 125,001 125,009 719,638
Thomas Ganswindt® 1,348 16,520 74,989 75,0011 149,990
Rudi Lamprecht® 1,348 16,520 74,989 75,001 149,990
Prof. Dr. Erich R. Reinhardt® 1,348 16,520 74,989 75,001 149,990
Prof. Dr. Claus Weyrich® 1,168 14,320 64,976 65,0131 129,989
Total 70,592 24,177 296,270 3,927,031 1,344,968 1,345,067 16,617,066

@ After a holding period of four years, the stock awards will be settled an November 12, 2008. Under the stock award agreement, the eligible
grantees will receive a corresponding number of Siemens shares without additional payment.

@ After a holding periad of two years, the stack options will be exercisable between November 20, 2006 and November 19, 2009 at a price of
€72.54 per share at the terms and conditions specified in the 2001 Siemens Stock Option Plan (for details see the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, p. 159 ff. of the Siemens Annual Report 2004).

 Deputy members of the Managing Board.
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Pension commitments. Pension commitments up to and including
fiscal year 2004 were made on a defined benefit basis, corresponding
to a percentage of 56% to the fixed compensation component.

With the realignment of the German pension plan of Siemens AG
into a new plan (BSAV), whose benefits are based largely on contribu-
tions made by the Company, the present system of defined benefits
for Managing Board members was replaced with effect from October
1, 2004 by a contribution-based system. Benetits earned until Sep-
tember 30, 2004 are not affected. The amount of the contributions
for the BSAV is determined by the Chairman’s Committee of the
Supervisory Board.

Pension commitments to current members of the Managing Board
are covered by Siemens AG. As of September 30, 2004, accruals of
€46.3 million have been recorded. Such amounts are included in the
amounts disclosed in Note 21 of the Notes to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements in the Siemens Annual Report 2004.

Former members of the Managing Board and their surviving
dependents received pensions and transitional payments of €13.5
million for the year ended September 30, 2004. Members of the Man-
aging Board who were appointed to the Managing Board before Octo-
ber 1, 2002, have the contractually accorded right to receive transi-
tional payments after leaving the Managing Board. The transitional
payments generally amount to the fixed salary of the year of resigna-
tion and the average of variable bonus paid for the last three fiscal
years before resignation. In single cases, the transitional payments
equal a one-year target compensation. If a member of the Managing
Board resigns early from office, the member has the right to receive a
severance payment which amounts to the target compensation for
the remaining contractual term of office.

Pension commitments to former members of the Managing Board
and their surviving dependents are also covered by Siemens AG. As of
September 30, 2004, accruals of €102.2 million have been recorded.
Such amounts are included in the amounts disclosed in Note 21 of
the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the Siemens
Annual Report 2004.

Other. No loans from the Company are provided to members of the
Managing Board.

2. Supervisory Board remuneration

The remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board was set at
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting through shareholder approval of a
proposal by the Managing and Supervisory Boards. Details of the
remuneration are set forth in the Articles of Association of Siemens AG.
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The remuneration of members of the Supervisory Board is based
on the Company's size, the assignments, and the responsibilities of
Supervisory Board members, and the Company's overall business
position and performance. In addition to a fixed payment, the remu-
neration includes a dividend-related and a stock-based component.
The Chairman, the Deputy Chairmen as well as the Chairman and
members of the Audit Committee receive additional compensation.

The current remuneration policies for the Supervisory Board were
authorized at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of February 18, 1999.
Compensation policies for service as committee chairman were set
at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting of January 23, 2003. Details are
setoutin § 17 of the Articles of Association of Siemens AG.

The compensation of Supervisory Board members for fiscal year

2004 incorporates three components:

O afixed component,

O avariable component depending on the annual dividend, and

O along-term component based on the development of the stock
market price.

In accordance with these remuneration policies, the fixed compen-
sation of each Supervisory Board member is €6,000, and the divi-
dend-dependent compensation is €3,500 for each €0.05 dividend dis-
tributed per share in excess of €0.20. In fiscal year 2004 the dividend
rate was €1.25 per share. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board
receives twice the standard compensation rate of an ordinary mem-
ber and each Deputy Chairman receives 1.5 times the standard com-
pensation rate. The Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an
additional 100 percent and each remaining member of the Audit .
Committee an additional 50 percent of the standard compensation
rate. The members of the Supervisory Board are reimbursed for any
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with their duties and
for any sales taxes paid.

In addition, each member of the Supervisory Board receives annu-
ally 1,500 stock appreciation rights (SARs) granted and exercisable on
the same terms as options issued under the Siemens stock option
plan then in effect.

The Managing Board and the Supervisory Board will propose to
the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting on January 27, 2005 that the remu-
neration of the Supervisory Board be modified with effect from Octo-
ber 1, 2004. In addition to a fixed remuneration of €50,000, a short-
and medium-term compensation component depending on earnings
per share is expected to be paid in the future.

1
a7
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Fair value of
Fixed Variable stock-based
{Expressed in €) compensation  compensation  compensation® Total
Dr. rer. oec. Karl-Hermann Baumann®® 18,000 220,500 6,810 245,310
Ralf Heckmann®® 12,000 147,000 6,810 165,810
Dr. oec. Josef Ackermann®® 12,000 147,000 6,810 165,810
Lothar Adler 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Gerhard Bieletzki 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
John David Coombe ' 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Hildegard Cornudet® 3,000 36,750 3,405 43,155
Dr. jur. Gerhard Cromme 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Rolf Dittmar® 3,000 36,750 3,405 43,155
Bertin Eichler®® 4,500 55,125 5,108 64,733
Birgit Grube 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Heinz Hawreliuk@ 9,000 110,250 6,810 126,060
Berthold Huber® 1,500 18,375 1,703 21,578
Prof. Dr. rer. nat. Walter Krdll 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Wolfgang Miller 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Georg Nassauer 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Dr. jur. Albrecht Schmidt 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Dr. jur. Henning Schulte-Noelle!? 9,000 110,250 6,810 126,060
Peter von Siemens 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Jerry . Speyer 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Lord lain Vallance of Tummel 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Klaus Wigand 6,000 73,500 6,810 86,310
Total 150,000 1,837,500 136,201 2,123,701

™ On the grant date, the stock appreciation rights had a fair value of €4.54 each, as calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model.

“ Dr. Baumann as Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee, Mr. Ralf Heckmann and Dr. Josef Ackermann as Deputy Chairmen
of the Supervisory Board and members of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Hawreliuk and Dr. Schulte-Noelle as members of the Audit Committee
received a higher standard compensation.

G The Chairman of the Supervisory Board is provided an office with secretarial services and a company car.

@ Ms. Hildegard Cornudet, formerly a substitute member of the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG, became a member of the Supervisory Board
as a successor for Mr, Rolf Dittmar with effect from April 1, 2004,

) Mr. Berthold Huber's appointment to the Supervisory Board of Siemens AG as a successor for Mr. Bertin Eichler was approved by the registry
court with effect from July 1, 2004,

An existing agreement with Mr. Peter von Siemens was renewed
after the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting 2003 with unchanged terms
and conditions under which he, a5 a member of the founder’s family,
is entitled to reimbursement of expenses and the provision of a com-
pany car and secretarial services for representing the Company at
official events in Germany and abroad and in various associations.

No loans from the Company are provided to members of the
Supervisory Board.




3. Stock ownership by members of the Managing and
Supervisory Boards

As of October 15, 2004, members of the Managing Board during the
fiscal year held 1,000,014 Siemens shares and stock options on
Siemens shares, representing 0.112 percent of the capital stock of
Siemens AG. On October 15, 2004, members of the Supervisory Board
held 18,824 Siemens shares and stock options on Siemens shares,
representing 0.002 percent of the capital stock of Siemens AG. These
figures do not include 16,364,977 shares, or 1.8 percent of the capital
stock, that are held by the von Siemens-Vermdgensverwaltungs
GmbH (vSV) - a German limited liability entity that functions much
like a trust - and 38,685,250 shares, or some 4.3 percent of the capi-
tal stock, over which the vSV has voting control under a power of
attorney. Mr. Peter von Siemens is authorized to vote these shares as a
representative of the founder’s family.

Pursuant to § 15a of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG)
(in effect during the reporting period), members of the Managing
and Supervisory Boards were required to disclose significant pur-
chases or sales of shares of Siemens AG. In fiscal 2004, no such trans-
actions were reported.

4, Other

The members of the governing bodies of Siemens AG and all board
members of its domestic and foreign subsidiaries are indemnified by
Siemens AG or its subsidiaries against third-party liability claims to
the extent permissible by law. For this purpose, the Company pro-
vides a group insurance policy for board and committee members
and employees of the Siemens organization which is taken out for
one year and renewed annually. The insurance covers the personal
liability of the insured in the case of a financial loss associated to
employment functions. There is no deductible in terms of Section
3.8, paragraph 2, of the German Corporate Governance Code. It is not
considered appropriate in the case of a group insurance policy to dif-
ferentiate between members of the Supervisory and Managing Boards
of Siemens AG and high-level personnel of its subsidiaries. Further-
more, such a deductible is not common practice outside Germany.
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Business areas

Siemens” operations are divided into six business areas:

o Information and Communications
0 Avtematien and Contrel

o Pewer

0 Tranepertation

0 Medical

0 Ughting

Other Slemens businesses:

0 Fnencng and Real Estate
o Affllates

Our Fnandng and Real Estate activities are har

Stemens Finanelal Services and Slemens Real Bstat

Major afffiiates Include Beseh une Slemans Havsgerite
GmbiH and Fufitsy Slemens Computers (Helding) BY
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Information and Communications

Communications (Com)

Com offers a comprehensive portfolio of innovative voice and data
communication solutions. The Group’s offerings span everything
from end-user devices to complex network infrastructure solutions
and services targeting enterprise customers and mobile and wireline

network operators.

Portfolio

www.siemens.com/

- Comprehensive portfolio of multi-
functional end-user equipment for
voice, data, and convergent net-
works - from mabile phones to set-
top boxes

— Wireless modules for machine-to-
machine communication and remote
control applications

— End-to-end communication solu-
tions for mobile and wireline net-
works - from broadband access to
switching systems and optical back-
bones

Siemens Business Services (SBS)

. communications
- Cross-network applications

- IP-based real-time communication
and security solutions for enterprise
networks

— Network management solutions
for mobile, wireline and enterprise
networks

~ Comprehensive outsourcing and
service offerings for enterprise
customers, network operators and
service providers

SBS offers enterprise and public-sector customers a rich portfolio
of multi-vendor IT solutions and services.

Portfolio

www.siemens.com/sbs

- Strategic [T consulting

- Optimization of business processes

- Planning and rollout of innovative
business solutions

- Integration of new IT capabilities into
existing system environments

—Infrastructure services, including
maintenance, user support, hotlines
and innovative servicing models

— Operational services and application
management

- IT management and outsourcing
services

- Business process outsourcing,
financial services and human
resources
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www.siemens.com/ad

www.industry.sieamens.com

Automation and Control

Automation and Drives (A&D)

A&D provides a full range of standard products for the manufactur-
ing and processing industries, electrical installation technology, and
system- and industry-specific solutions.

Portfolic

- Automation systems - Process analysis

- Drives technology - Sensor systems

- Motion control systems - Measuring and test systems

— Electrical installation technology - Industrial communication/ networks
- Low-voltage controls and distribution - Safety engineering

— Process automation — Industrial IT

Industrial Solutions and Services (1&S)

I&S is a systems and solutions integrator for industrial plants and
infrastructure projects, combining Siemens’ expertise in drives,
automation, IT and services to provide comprehensive solutions.

As a global service provider for Siemens’ major project business,
1&S also supplies lifecycle solutions to optimize manufacturing and
business processes throughout the entire life span of a production
facility.

Portfolio

— Potable and waste water - Opencast mining

—Iron and steel - MES solutions

—Infrastructure solutions for road traffic - Engineering, commissioning,

- Shipbuilding maintenance and modernization of
- Oiland gas industrial plants and infrastructure

— Pulp and paper systems
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Logistics and Assembly Systems (L&A)
L&A plans, builds, operates and services customer-specific manu-
facturing and logistics systems and installations.

Portfolio www.logistics-assembly.
: - . . siemens.com
- Production automation for the — Airport logistics
electrical industry, SMT pick-and- - Shipping and storage logistics
place systems - in-house transportation systems

- Plants and systems for postal
services automation

Siemens Building Technologies (SBT)
SBT's scalable offerings include systems, services and integrated
solutions for building safety, security, fire protection and comfort

control.
Portfolio www.sbt.siemens.com
- Systems and products for controlling ~ Fire protection and gas afarm
heating, ventilation and air-condi- systems and products
tioning systems ~ Electronic security solutions and
- Services for boosting energy products for identification and access
efficiency control, video surveiflance and intru-

- Performance contracting sion protection
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Www.pg.siemens.com

www.siemens.com/ptd

Power

Power Generation (PG)

Besides planning, developing and building complete power plants,
PG manufactures power and heat generation components and
systems, as well as drives and compressors for industrial applica-
tions. The Group also offers a comprehensive range of services in

these areas.

Portfolio

— Power plants, combined-cycle sys-
tems, gas turbines, steam turbines,
generators

- Industrial power plants and
combined heat and power plants

- Drive units and compressors

— Instrumentation and control systems
and [T solutions

- Services

- Fuel cells

- Biomass power plants

Power Transmission and Distribution (PTD)

As a product supplier, systems integrator, and provider of end-to-end
solutions and services, PTD enables power utilities and industry
customers to transport electricity reliably and economically from the

power plant to the consumer.

Portfolio

- Turnkey solutions for electric power

transmission and distribution
- High-voltage and medium-voltage
switchgear and components

- Power transformers and distribution

transformers

- High-voltage direct-current transmis-

sion technology

~ Protection and substation control
systems

- Network control systems and IT
solutions for the power industry

— Power services
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Transportation

Transportation Systems (TS)

TS is a systems integrator and turnkey supplier with an extensive
offering of vehicles, signaling and control systems, automation
systems, rail electrification systems and telecommunication systems
for the rail transport sector.

Portfolio www.siemens.com/
E R . K transportation

— Operations control systems —Vehicles for mass-transit, regional P

- Rail electrification and mainline systems

- Turnkey rail systems - Services

Siemens VDO Automotive (SV)

As a development partner and supplier to the automotive industry,
SV manufactures powertrain, information, navigation, chassis and
body products and systems that enhance automobiles’ efficiency,
safety, comfort and environmental performance.

Portfolio www,siemensvdo.com
~ Engine and drive management ~ infotainment systems

systems ~ Driver information systems
~Induction, fuel and emission - Car body electronic systems

components ~Safety and chassis electronics
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www.siemens.com/medical

Medical

Medical Solutions (Med)

Med develops innovative technologies for diagnostics and therapy,
and offers solutions and services designed to optimize workflows
across the entire healthcare enterprise.

Portfolio

- Roentgen and imaging systems - Molecular imaging

~ Angiography systems ~ IT solutions

~ Computed tomography ~ Software

- Magnetic resonance imaging - Audiological systems
- Nuclear medicine systems —Vacuum technology
- Ultrasound systems - Components

- Electromedical systems - Urology solutions

- Radiation therapy systems — Mammiography systems
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Lighting

Osram
Siemens’ subsidiary Osram specializes in lighting sources, associ-
ated electronic control gear and light management systems.

Portfolio www.osram.com
- Lamps - Lamps for the semiconductor

- Halogen lamps industry and health care

— Fluorescent lamps - Electronic control gear

- Compact fluorescent lamps ~ LEDs, OLEDs, infrared components,

- Halogen vapor lamps high-performance laser diodes

—Sodium lamps ~ Light management systems

- Vehicle lamps
— Lamps for displays, entertainment
and cinema
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www.siemens.com/sfs

www.siemens.com/

realestate

Financing and Real Estate

Siemens Financial Services (SFS$)

SFS conducts Siemens’ worldwide financial business and offers
industrial and services companies and public-sector clients an exten-
sive spectrum of financing solutions.

Portfolio

— Mid-market finance - Investment management

— Credit portfolio management — Treasury and financing services
- Project and export finance —Insurance solutions
- Equity ~ Investment management

Siemens Real Estate (SRE)

SRE is Siemens’ real estate arm. The Group’s service offering includes
real estate portfolio management, consulting, development and com-
mercialization.

Portfolio

— Real estate rental and leasing ~ Service management

- Account and building management - Portfolio management and analysis
— Regional location and property - Land and property development

planning - Architecture and project manage-
— Real estate and location valuations ment

- Workstation concepts - Commercialization
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Affiliates

BSH Bosch und Siemens Hausgerdte GmbH
BSH’s product range includes both large and small household
appliances as well as network-enabled products for the homes

of tomorrow.

Portfolio www.bsh-group.com
- Dishwashers — Washing machines and dryers

- Stoves and ovens - Air conditioners

- Microwaves - Floorcare appliances

- Ceramic glass stove-tops and hobs - Small appliances

- Ventilation hoods - Network-enabled appliances

- Refrigerators and freezers

Fujitsu Siemens Computers (Holding) BV

Fujitsu and Siemens’ joint venture offers large corporations, small
and medium-sized companies and private users an exceptionally

broad portfolio of information technology and enterprise IT infra-
structure solutions.

Portfolio www.fujitsu-siemens.com
- T infrastructure solutions and - Professional PCs and workstations

services - Mobility devices and solutions
- Server platforms (Intel-, Unix- and (handhelds, notebooks, pen tablets)

Linux-based servers, mainframes) - PCs for private users

— Company-wide storage solutions

Teol
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Siemens in fiscal 2004

(ended September 30, 2004)

o Siemens reported netincome of €3.405 billion, up
39%|from €2.445 billion a year earlier, resulting in
basic earnings per share of €3.82.

o Netincome was up 23% to €3.002 billion on a com-
para‘ble basis, excluding a pre-tax gain of €590 million
and a reversal of €246 million in deferred tax liabilities
related to the sale of shares of Infineon Technologies
AG, partially offset by a goodwill impairment of €433
million related to Logistics and Assembly Systems
(L&A).

o Gron profit from Operations was €4.998 billion, up

16% from €4.295 billion in fiscal 2003.

Orders rose 8% to €80.830 billion and sales increased

1% to €75.167 billion year-over-year. On a comparable

basi:s, excluding currency translation effects and the

net effect of acquisitions and dispositions, orders rose

9% and sales increased 3%.

o Net cash from operating and investing activities was
€3.262 billion, up from €1.773 billion a year earlier.

o Siemens management proposes a dividend of €1.25
per share, up from €1.10 a year earlier.

o

"Fiscal 2004 was a very successful year for Siemens,” said
CEO Heinrich v. Pierer upon releasing preliminary full-year
results for fiscal 2004. “Most of our Groups delivered impres-
sive results, including strong volume growth and double-
digit earnings growth, thanks to successful implementation
of our ‘Go for profit and growth’ initiative.

“We are continuing this initiative in fiscal 2005. We are
also pursuing further operational improvements at our
Groups, given that factors such as a weakening U.S. dollar
and risiri)g commodity prices may make the macroeconomic
environment more challenging,” Pierer continued. “In addi-
tion welwill deal with the particular issues at Transportation
Systems (TS), Siemens Business Services (5BS) and Commu-
nications (Com).”

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2004, Siemens
reported net income of €3.405 billion, up 39% compared
to fiscablZOOB. Basic and diluted earnings per share rose to
€3.82 anhd €3.66, respectively, compared to €2.75 per share
a year earlier. Net income was €3.002 billion en a compara-
ble basis, excluding the Infineon and goodwill effects men-
tioned above. Group profit from Operations rose 16%, to
just under €5 billion, as 10 of the 13 Groups in Operations
increased their profits compared to fiscal 2003. Automation
and Drives (A&D), Medical Solutions (Med) and Power Gen-
eration (PG) contributed the lion's share of Group profit from
Operations, followed by Siemens VDO Automotive (SV) and
Osram. Despite difficult markets, Information and Communi-
cation Networks (ICN), Logistics and Assembly Systems
(L&A), Information and Communication Mobile (ICM) and
Industrial Solutions and Services (1&S) all made significant
improvements in Group profit. At TS, management took
decisiveisteps to address challenges in the Group’s rolling
stock business.

Siemens achieved its goal of restoring top-line growth
in fiscal 2004, posting sales of €75.167 billion compared to
€74.233 billion a year earlier. Sales were up 3% year-over-
year on a comparable basis, excluding currency translation
effects and the net effect of acquisitions and dispositions.
Orders rose to €80.830 billion from €75.056 billion in the
prior fiscal year, a 9% increase on a comparable basis. A
majority of the Groups in Operations reported increases in
both sales and orders for the year, despite declining business
volume in Germany, particularly in the fourth quarter.

Net cash from operating and investing activities was
€3.262 billion in fiscal 2004, compared to €1.773 billion a
year earlier. The difference is due primarily to net proceeds
of €1.794 billion from the sale of Infineon shares in fiscal
2004. Within Operations, operating activities generated
€4.008 billion in cash while investing activities included
€822 million used to acquire USFilter, a water systems and
services business in the U.S. For comparison, operating activ-
ities provided €4.123 billion in fiscal 2003, and investing
activities included €929 million used for PG's industrial tur-
bine business. Siemens also made similar supplemental cash
contributions to its pension plans in both years, totaling
€1.255 billion in fiscal 2004 and €1.192 billion a year earlier.




Operations in fiscal 2004

Information and Communications

Information and Communication Networks (ICN)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
Compa-
(€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable*
Group profit 222 (366)
Group profit margin 32% (5.1)%
Sales 6,994 7,122 (2)% 0%
New orders 7,011 7,070 (1Y% 1%

* Excluding currency translation effects of (3)%, and portfolio
effects of 1% on sales and orders.

ICN posted profits in all four quarters and delivered Group
profit of €222 million for the full fiscal year. The loss of €366
million a year earlier included significant charges for sever-
ance, as well as write-downs of venture capital and other
investments. ICN's Carrier Networks and Services businesses
accounted for much of the profit improvement year-over-
year. While sales remained virtually unchanged year-over-
year, at €3.426 billion, carrier activities delivered €98 million
in earnings compared to a loss of €439 million a year earlier.
The Enterprise Networks division earned €208 million on
sales of €3.578 billion, close to prior-year Jevels. For ICN
overall, sales of just under €7.0 billion for the fiscal year were
level with the prior year on a comparable basis. Orders also
remained stable year-over-year.

Effective October 1, 2004, our ICN and ICM Groups were
combined to form our new Siemens Communications (Com)
Group. Com is organized into three businesses around the
telecommunications industry with eight divisions. The
devices business consists of Mobile Devices, Customer
Premises Equipment Devices and Wirefess Modufes; the
enterprise networks business consists of the two divisions
Enterprise Systems and Enterprise Services; and the carrier
networks business consists of the Mobile Networks, Fixed
Networks and Carrier Services divisions.

Information and Communication Mobile (ICM)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
Compa-
(€in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable*
Group profit 347 180 93%
Group profit margin 3.1% 1.8%
Sales 11,042 9,964 11% 13%
New orders 11,459 9,960 15% 17%

* Excluding currency translation effects.
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In fiscal 2004, ICM substantially increased its Group profit
compared to fiscal 2003 and also achieved double-digit
growth in sales and orders. The improvement was due
primarily to the Mobile Networks division, which delivered
€396 million in earnings on sales of €4.979 billion. Both
figures were up strongly from the pricr year, when the divi-
sion earned €116 million on €4.311 billion in sales. The Cord-
less Products division also contributed increases in both
earnings and sales year-over-year. ICM’s Mobile Phones divi-
sion sofd 51.1 million handsets during the year, well above
the 39.1 million handsets sold a year earlier. Competitive
pressures reduced average selling price per unit, however,
and quality issues delayed both the rollout and full profitabil-
ity of the division’s new 65 series of mobhile handsets. As a
result, Mobile Phones posted a loss of €152 million on sales
of €4.979 billion compared to earnings of €27 million on
sales of €4.474 billion in the prior year.

As mentioned above, effective October 1, 2004, our ICN
and ICM Groups were combined to form our new Siemens
Communications (Com) Group.

Siemens Business Services (SBS)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
Compa-
{€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual rable*
Group profit 40 13 208%
Group profit margin 0.8% 0.2%
Sales 4,716 5,205 (9% {9)%
New orders 6,293 5,226 20% 8%

* Excluding portfolio effects of 12% on orders.

SBS posted Group profit of €40 million compared to €13
million a year earlier. The current year includes a €93 million
gain from the sale of 74.9% of SBS' Kordoba unit to its strate-
gic partner Fidelity Information Services (FIS), largely offset
by charges for severance. The prior year included significant
charges for risks associated with a long-term business
process outsourcing contract. Declining demand for {T solu-
tions, particularly in Germany, resuited in sales of €4.716 bil-
lion compared to €5.205 billion a year earlier. SBS won two
major outsourcing contracts in England, which pushed
orders up 20% year-over-year, to €6.293 billion,
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Automation and Control

Automation and Drives (A&D)

Logistics and Assembly Systems (L&A)

Year ended September 30,

Year ended September 30,

% Change % Change
Compa- Compa-
(€ in rillions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable* (€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual rable*
Groug profit 1,077 806 34% Group profit 2 (218)
Group profit margin 12.2% 9.6% Group profit margin 0.1%  (8.4)%
Sales 8,829 8,375 5% 7%  Sales 2,338 2,600 (10)% (5)%
New orders 8,980 8,476 6% 8% New orders 2,687 2,599 3% 9%

* Exc}lud'\ng currency translation effects of (3)%, and portfalio
effects of 1% on sales and orders.

A&D exemplified the success of Siemens’ profit and
growth initiative in fiscal 2004, driving Group profit up to
€1.077 billion for the year on solid gains in sales and orders.
A&D further improved its earnings margin, as a resuit of
increased productivity and higher capacity utilization.
Stronger demand in international markets, including 25%
growth with external customers in Asia-Pacific, increased
sales to €8.829 billion for the year. Orders rose 6% year-
over-year, to €8.980 billion.

Industrial Solutions and Services (1&S)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
Compa-
(€in millions) 2004 2003 Actual rable*
Group profit 95 41)
Group profit margin 2.2%  (1.0)%
Sales 4,290 4,012 7% 7%
New orders 4,356 3,955 10% 9%

* Excluding currency translation effects of (3)% on sales and
orders, and portfolio effects of 3% and 4% on sales and orders,
respectively.

1&S contributed €95 million in Group profit for the year,
on broad-based earnings improvement. Group profit also
benefited from positive effects related to capacity reduction
programs. In contrast, severance charges contributed to a
loss alyear eariier. Sales at 1&S were up 7% year-over-year, to
€4.250 billion, and orders rose 10%, to €4.356 billion, bene-
fiting from the USFilter acquisition between the periods
under review,

* Excluding currency translation effects.

L&A finished in the black following a loss in fiscal 2003.
Fiscal 2004 included charges related to excess capacity and
cost overruns, while the prior year included substantial loss
provisions related to two large contracts. The Electronics
Assembly division was the Group's leading earnings contrib-
utor, and also increased its sales, orders, and earnings mar-
gin year-over-year. Completion of major projects led to lower
sales, at €2.338 billion. Orders of €2.687 billion were up 3%
year-over-year. Following an extensive internal review of the
outlook for the L&A airport logistics activities and distribu-
tion and industry logistics activities, during the second quar-
ter, management concluded that goodwill related to L&A
was impaired. Because the businesses were acquired at the
corporate level as part of the Siemens’ Atecs transaction, the
resulting goodwill impairment was taken centrally,
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Power

Power Generation (PG)

Year ended September 30,

Year ended September 30,

% Change % Change
Compa- Compa-
(€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable* (€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable*
Group profit 108 101 7% Group profit 961 1,171 (18)%
Group profit margin 2.5% 2.0% Group profit margin 12.8% 16.8%
Sales 4,247 4,930 (15)% ()%  Sales 7,527 6,967 8% 0%
New orders 4,358 4,775 (9% 2% New orders 9,243 7,302 27% 14%

* Excluding currency translation effects of {(4)%, and portfolio
effects of (7)% on sales and orders.

SBT increased Group profit to €108 million despite lower
sales following the divestment of its facility management
business early in the year. Group profit of €101 million a year
earlier included substantial severance charges. On a compa-
rable basis, SBT’s sales of €4.247 billion for fiscal 2004 were
4% below the prior-year level and orders of €4,358 billion
were up 2% year-over-year,

* Excluding currency translation effects of (4)% on sales and
orders, and portfolio effects of 12% and 17% on sales and
orders, respectively.

PG contributed €961 million in Group profit for the year.
Fiscal 2004 included gains related to the cancellation of
orders of €47 million compared to the prior year, which ben-
efited from gains of €359 million, partly offset by €92 million
in allowances on inventories associated with the cancella-
tions. Excluding the net effect of cancellations, Group profit
was stable year-over-year. Sales at PG rose 8% year-over-
year, to €7.527 billion. Orders climbed 27%, to €9.243 billion,
driven in part by full-year inclusion of the industrial turbine
businesses PG acquired in the second half of fiscal 2003.
Order growth was regionally widespread, as PG won new
business in Africa, Asia, Europe, the Near East, and Latin
America. PG's service business also continued to grow year-
over-year.
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|Power Transmission and Distribution (PTD)

Transportation

Transportation Systems (TS)

Year ended September 30,

Year ended September 30,

% Change % Change
Compa- Compa-
|(€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual rable* (€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable*
iGroup profit 238 207 15% Group profit (434) 284
'Group profit margin 6.6% 6.1% Group profit margin (10.1)% 6.0%
Sales 3,611 3,399 6% 9%  Sales 4,310 4,697 (8)% (7)%
New orders 3,863 3,586 8% 11%  New orders 4,321 4,674 (8)% (7)%

* Excluding currency translation effects of (4)% and (5)% on
sales and orders, respectively, and portfolio effects of 1% and
2% on sales and orders, respectively.

PTD increased Group profit to €238 million for the year
on broad-based earnings growth within the Group. PTD also
achieved solid sales growth, particularly in Europe and Asia-
Pacific. Overall, sales rose 6% year-over-year, to €3.611 bil-
lion, and orders were up 8%, at €3.863 billion, particularly
as a result of the volume growth in the fourth quarter, which
included PTD's acquisition of Trench Electric Holding and
new orders in Africa and the Middle East.

* Excluding currency translation effects.

In fiscal 2004, TS responded decisively to the technical
problems and associated issues that affected its rolling stock
business, particularly the innovative low-floor light rail vehi-
cle with a modular platform concept, marketed under the
name Combino. The Group identified technical soluticns
during the year and is beginning to implement them. These
actions and associated charges, accompanied by a corre-
sponding slow-down in rolling stock sales, led to a loss of
€434 million. In addition to these factors, TS also faced gen-
erally slower demand for rail transportation systems, partic-
ularly in Germany. As a result, sales and orders at TS were
€4.310 billion and €4.321 billion, respectively, 8% below
fiscal 2003 levels.

Siemens VDO Automotive (SV)

Year ended September 30,

% Change
Compa-
(€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual  rable*
Group profit 562 418 34%
Group profit margin 6.2% 5.0%
Sales 9,001 8,375 7% 9%
New orders 9,029 8,375 8% 10%

* Excluding currency translation effects of (3)%, and portfolio
effects of 1% on sales and orders.

Group profit of €562 million at SV enabled the Group to
break even relative to its full-year cost of capital for the first
time. Earnings improved at all divisions within SV, with the
fastest growth coming at the Interior & Infotainment divi-
sion. Revenue growth was also broad-based, as sales rose
7% compared to the prior year, to €9.001 billion. Orders rose
8%, to €9.029 billion, The development also includes SV's
acquisition of a United States automotive electronics busi-
ness from DaimlerChrysler during the second quarter of
fiscal 2004,
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Medical Lighting
Medical Solutions (Med) Osram
Year ended September 30, Year ended September 30,
% Change % Change
Compa- Compa-
(€ in millions} 2004 2003 Actual rable* {€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual rable*
Group profit 1,046 1,118 (6)% Group profit 445 410 9%
Group profit margin 14.8% 15.1% Group profit margin 10.5% 9.8%
Sales 7.072 7,422 (5)% 6% Sales 4,240 4,172 2% 8%
New orders 8,123 7.835 4% 15% New orders 4,240 4,172 2% 8%

* Excluding currency transiation effects of (6)% and (7)% on
sales and orders, respectively, and portfolio effects of (5)% and
(4)% on sales and orders, respectively.

Med again delivered more than €1 biilion in full-year
Group profit. Fiscal 2004 included €118 million in gains from
portfolio transactions, primarily the safe of Med’s Life Sup-
port Systems (LSS) business. For comparison, fiscal 2003
included a €63 million gain related to the contribution of
a portion of Med’s electromedical systems business to a
joint venture with Dragerwerk AG. While these transactions
reduced Med's revenue base compared to the prior year,
sales of €7.072 billion were up 6% year-over-year, excluding
currency translation and portfolio effects. Orders climbed
to €8.123 billion, up 15% on a comparable basis.

* Excluding currency translation effects.

Csram increased its Group profit 9% for the year, to €445
million, leveraging higher manufacturing productivity to
achieve a double-digit earnings margin for the year. Sales
increased to €4.240 billion, up 8% year-over-year on a com-
parable basis. Higher revenue year-over-year was highlight-
ed by particularly strong growth in Asia-Pacific and Latin
America.

~ 1
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Other Operations

Other Operations consist of centrally held eguity invest-
ments and other operating businesses not related to a
Group, such as Siemens' joint ventures for household apphi-
ances (BSH Bosch und Siemens Hausgerdte GmbH) and
computers (Fujitsu Siemens Computers). Equity earnings
from these joint ventures again were the primary contribu-
tor tolearnings from Other Operations, which totaled €289
million in fiscal 2004 compared to €212 million in fiscal
2003.

Corporate items, pensions and eliminations

Corporate items, pensions and eliminations were a negative
€1.207 billion in fiscal 2004 compared to & negative €1.576
billionvin the same period a year earlier, Corporate items
totaled a negative €450 million for the year compared to a
negative €747 million in fiscal 2003. Corporate items in fiscal
2004 included the pre-tax gain of €590 million from the sale
of Infineon shares, partly offset by the €433 mitlion goodwill
impairment related to L&A. This impairment is taken central-
ly because the relevant businesses were acquired at the cor-
porate level as part of Siemens’ Atecs Mannesmann trans-
action. Corporate items a year earlier benefited from the
positive resolution of an arbitration proceeding. Siemens’
equity'share of Infineon’s net result was a positive €14 mil-
lion, compared to a negative €170 million in fiscal 2003.

In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, Siemens relinquished
its ability to exercise significant influence over the operating
and financial policies of Infineon. Consequently, we ceased
accounting for our investment in Infineon under the equity
method and began accounting for it as a marketable securi-
ty. Centrally carried pension expense was €730 million in
fiscal 2004, compared to €828 million a year earlier. Domes-
tic pension service costs were carried centrally in fiscal 2003
but are allocated to the Groups beginning in fiscal 2004.
The effect of this change was partly offset by higher amorti-
zation of unrealized pension plan losses in fiscal 2004.

Financing and Real Estate

Siemens Financial Services (SF$)

Year ended
September 30,
% Change
(€ in miltions) 2004 2003 Actual
Income before income taxes 250 269 (7)%
Total assets 9,055 8,445 7%

Income before income taxes at SFS in fiscal 2004 was
€250 million compared to €269 million a year eartier. The
difference is due in part to higher write-downs of receiv-
ables in the Equipment & Sales Financing (ESF) division com-
pared to the prior year. Income at SFS for the year also
reflects an expansion of the ESF division in Europe and North
America, resulting in a corresponding increase in total assets
compared to fiscal 2003.

Siemens Real Estate (SRE)

Year ended
September 30,
% Change
(€ in millions) 2004 2003 Actual
income before income taxes 108 206 (48)%

Sales 1,584 1,592 (1)%

Income before income taxes at SRE in fiscal 2004 was
€108 million compared to €206 million a year earlier. While
sales were level with the prior year, weakness in the market
for commercial real estate reduced returns. Market condi-
tions also led the Group to terminate a major development
project in Frankfurt during fiscal 2004, and the associated
charges contributed to the decline in income for the year.




Eliminations, reclassifications and Corporate Treasury
Income before taxes from Eliminations, reclassifications and
Corporate Treasury of €224 million for fiscal year 2004
included higher interest income. In comparison, the prior
year amount of €266 million included higher positive effects
from hedging activities not qualifying for hedge accounting,
as well as a €35 million gain related to the buyback of a note
exchangeable into Infineon shares.

Income statement highlights for Siemens worldwide

in fiscal 2004 '

Siemens reported net income for fiscal 2004 of €3.405 bil-
lion, up 39% from €2.445 billion a year earlier. Net incorne
benefited from a pre-tax gain of €590 million and €246
million in positive tax effects related to the sale of Infineon
shares, partially offset by a €433 millien goodwill impair-
ment related to L&A. Excluding these effects, net income
was €3.002 billion, up 23% year-over-year,

For Siemens worldwide, gross profit margin increased
1o 28.8% from 28.1%, as most of the Groups in Operations
improved their gross profit year-over-year. ICM, A&D, and
PG were the leaders in this regard, while gross profit was
lower at TS and Med. Research and development expenses
were stable at 6.7% of sales. Marketing, selling and general
administrative expenses improved to 18.0% of sales, com-
pared to 18.2% in the prior year, as sustained efforts at cost
control coincided with rising revenues.

Other operating income (expense), net, was a negative
€156 million, as gains from divestments, particularly Med's
sale of LSS, were offset by the goodwill impairment related
to L&A. For comparison, other operating income (expense),
net, in fiscal 2003 was a positive €642 miflion, including
significant net gains from project cancellations at PG and
Med's gain from the contribution of assets to a joint venture.
Income (loss) from investments in other companies, net,
was a positive €1.031 billion, up from €142 million in fiscal
2003. The change is due primarily to Infineon, including the
gain on share sales in the current year and the equity share
of Infineon’s net loss in the prior year.

Sales and order trends for fiscal 2004

Sales for Siemens worldwide in fiscal 2004 were €75.167
billion, up from €74.233 billion a year earlier. Orders for
Siemens worldwide increased 8% to €80.830 billion com-
pared to €75.056 billion in the prior year. Both sales and
orders increased primarily on the strength of international
business. In Germany, sales of €17.073 billion were level
with the prior year and orders of €16.001 billion came in
5% lower. International sales increased 2% year-over-year,
to €58.094 billion, and international orders climbed 11%,
to €64.829 billion.
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Within international results, sales in the Asia-Pacific region
increased 7% year-over-year, to €9.349 billion, and orders
rose 10%, to €10.028 billion. Within Asia-Pacific, sales in
China were up 1% at €2.873 billion and orders rose 12% year-
over-year, to €3.134 billion. Sales in the U.S. were €13.621
billion, 11% lower compared to the same period a year ear-
lier. U.S. orders of €14.043 billion, were 4% lower year-over-
year. Excluding currency translation effects, sales were level
and orders increased 8% in the U.S.

Liquidity for fiscal 2004

In Operations, net cash from operating and investing activi-
ties was €2.485 billion, benefiting from €1.794 billion in pro-
ceeds from the sale of infineon shares. Cash used for acqui-
sitions in fiscal 2004 was €1.472 billion, including €822
miflion for USFilter. Net cash from operating and investing
activities in Operations in fiscal 2003, €468 million, included
higher outflows for investing activities, including €929 mil-
lion for PG's industrial turbine business. Both periods includ-
ed supplemental cash contributions to Siemens pension
plans, totaling €1.255 billion in fiscal 2004 and €1.192 billion
in fiscal 2003.

The two other components of Siemens worldwide, which
include Financing and Real Estate and Corporate Treasury
activities, provided net cash from operating and investing
activities of €777 million in fiscal 2004. These components
provided net cash of €1.305 billion in the prior year. Fiscal
2004 included renewed asset growth in the financing busi-
ness. Positive net effects from Corporate Treasury activities,
primarily related to the hedging of intra-company financ-
ings, were substantially higher in the prior year. in aggre-
gate, net cash provided by operating and investing activities
for Siemens worldwide was €3.262 billion in the current
year compared to €1.773 billion in fiscal 2003.

Funding status of pension plans

The funding status of Siemens' principal pension plans on
September 30, 2004 improved significantly compared to the
end of the prior fiscal year, with an underfunding of approxi-
mately €3.1 billion compared to an underfunding of approxi-
mately €5.0 billion at September 30, 2003, The improve-
ment in funding status is mainly due to supplemental
contributions in the first quarter. The return on plan assets
during the last twelve months amounted to €1.128 billion,
close to the expected annualized return of 6.7%.
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[Economic Value Added

Siemens ties a portion of its executive incentive compensa-
tion to achieving economic value added (EVA) targets. EVA
measures the profitability of a business (using Group profit
:for the operations Groups and income before income taxes
for the Financing and Real Estate businesses as a base)
against the additional cost of capital used to run a business
{using Net capital employed for the operations Groups and
risk-adjusted equity for the Financing and Real Estate busi-
nesses as a base). A positive EVA means that a business has
earned more than its cost of capital, whereas a negative EVA
means that a business has earned less than its cost of capi-
tal. Depending on the EVA development year-over-year, a
business is defined as value-creating or value-destroying.
Other companies that use EVA may define and calculate EVA
differently.

Subsequent events
The following events took place or will take place after the
close of the fiscal year:
o Effective October 1, 2004, ICN and ICM were combined
to form a new Group called Communications (Com).
o After the close of the fiscal year, Siemens made a supple-
mental cash contribution to its pension ptans of €1.5 bil-
lion.
Siemens AG Osterreich has signed on November 7, 2004
an agreement to acquire Victory Industriebeteiligung AG
Austria {Victory), which directly and indirectly holds an
equity share of approximately 16% in VA Technologie AG
(VA Tech). As a result of the Victory acquisition, Siemens
has informed the Boards of VA Tech, the Boards of Oster-
reichische Industrie Holding AG (O1AG) and the Austrian
Government that it is prepared to participate in VA Tech’s
capital increase. In addition, Siemens has informed the
Austrian takeover panel about its plans to shortly submit
a voluntary takeover bid for all of VA Tech outstanding
shares. Siemens will offer €55 per share to VA Tech share-
holders.

o

This short report contains forward-looking statements and
information - that is, statements related to future, not
past, events. These statements moy be identified by words
as “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” “will” or words of similar meaning.
Such statements are based on our current expectations
and certain assumptions, and are, therefare, subject to cer-
tain risks and uncertainties. A variety of factors, many of
which are beyond Siemens’ control, affect its operations,
performance, business strategy and results and could cause
the actual results, performance or achievements of
Siemens worldwide to be materially different from any
future results, performance or achievements that may be
expressed or implied by such forward-loocking statements.
For us, particular uncertainties arise, among others, from
changes in general economic and business conditions,
changes in currency exchange rates and interest rates,
introduction of competing products or technologies by oth-
er companies, lack of acceptance of new products or servic-
es by customers targeted by Siemens worldwide, changes
in business strategy and various other factors. More
detailed information about certain of these factors is con-
tained in Siemens’ filings with the SEC, which are available
on the Siemens website, www.siemens.com and on the
SEC's website, www.sec.gov. Should one or more of these
risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary mate-
rially from those described in the relevant forward-fooking
statement as anticipated, believed, estimated, expected,
intended, planned or projected. Siemens does not intend or
assume any obligation to update or revise these forward-
looking statements in light of developments which differ
from those anticipated.

v




The fiy
from our &

m presenied on the followlng pages is exiracied
[@@J mnwwﬂﬂ@i‘mm Mnancial statements tnel lnmﬂmﬂ fm the

mber 50, 2004, KPMG
Deutsche Treahand-Gesellschall has audited our inmmaﬂ consolidated
Mnancial staiements as and for the year ended Sepiembes 30, 2004 and
2003 and Jssued an wngualified opinion incuding & reference (o Stemens’
adoption of Statements of Finencial Accounting Standards (SUAS) No, 143,
Arvcounting lor Assot Retirement Obligations effeetive Octaber 1, 2002,
Shemens’ 2004 Annual Report and form 20-F including these consolidated
Hinancial staiements wii | od anditors’ repor gre svatlable on our
websiie ot wew,stemens.com.

Shemens Annual Bepoxt for the year ended Se
[

Slemens is registered in ihe @fﬂnmnmwﬁ@ﬂ B@mo i «UL
fained by the local courts in B@T{
entry numiber 12300 and | M CRtry number
B, Dur annual Consel @ﬂmm] mfnmc@msﬂ wnd Management's
Discussion and Ang Umn% accurding to section 292s of the German Com-
merefal @@(J@("’[aﬁ@@l\g@&“s&%f/}m@h)wﬁhﬂb@ od with these Commesclal

Reglsters and published in the Federal Gazette (Sundesanzelger).

mwkﬁmgﬂqnwrﬁ ) mafon-
many, under the




70 .
L

CONSOLIDATED FIRANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of €, per share amounts in €)

Siemnens worldwide

2004 2003
Net sales 75,167 74,233
Cost of sales (53,522) (53,350)
Graoss profit on sales 21,645 20,883
Research and development expenses (5,063) (5,067)
Marketing, selling and general administrative expenses (13,567) (13,534)
Other operating income (expense), net (therein gain on issuance of subsidiary
and associated company stock €- and €3, respectively) (156) 642
‘Income from investments in other companies, net 1,031 142
Income (expense) from financial assets and marketable securities, net 70 61
-Interest income of Operations, net 18 31
Other interest income (expense), net 254 214
Income before income taxes 4,232 3,372
lincome taxes™ (661) (867)
IMinority interest (166) (96)
income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principte 3,405 2,409
ICumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income taxes - 36
Net income 3,405 2,445
|Basic earnings per share
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 3.82 2.71
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income taxes - 0.04
Net income 3.82 2.75
Diluted earnings pert share
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 3.66 2.7
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of income taxes - 0.04
Net income 3.66 2.75

® The income taxes of Eliminations, reclassifications and Corporate Treasury,
! Operations, and Financing and Real Estate are based on the consolidated effective
corporate tax rate applied to income before income taxes.




1
COMSCLIDATER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [71J

Eliminations,

reclassifications and Financing and
Corporate Treasury QOperations Real Estate
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
(1,539) 1,623) 74,573 73,744 2,133 2,112
1,539 1,625 (53,320) (53,298) (1,747) (1,677)
- 2 21,253 20,446 392 435
~ - (5,063} {5,067} - -
(1) - (13,284) (13,243) (282) {291}
(76) 77} (176) 555 96 164
~ - 972 66 59 76
24 135 71 (69) (25) (5)
- ~ 18 3 ~ ~
277 206 {141) (88) 118 _.Eé
224 266 3,650 2,631 358 475
{33) {68) (570} {677) (58) (122)
- - (1686) (96) i [,
189 198 2,914 1,858 302 353
o - - - 39 -3

189 198 2,914 1,897 302 350
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of €)

Stemens worldwide

9/30/04 9/30/03
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 12,180 12,149
Marketable securities ‘ 1,386 650
Accounts receivable, net ) 15,470 14,511
intracompany receivables ~ -
Inventories, net 11,358 10,368
Deferred income taxes ' 1,144 1,063
Other current assets 4,398 4,750
Total current assets 45,946 43,489
Long-term investments 4,122 5,992
Goodwill 6,476 6,501
Other intangible assets, net 2,514 2,358
Property, plant and equipmém, net 10,683 10,756
Deferred income taxes 4,811 4,359
QOther assets 4,966 4,150
Other intracompany receivables ~ -
Total assets 79,518 77,605
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Short-term debt and current maturities of long-term debt 1,434 1,745
Accounts payable 9,326 8,404
intracompany Habilities -~ -~
Accrued fiabilities 9,240 8,884
Deferred income taxes 1,522 870
Other current liabifities _ 11,850 12,125
Total current ligbilities 33,372 32,028
Long-term debt 9,785 11,433
Pension plans and similar commitments 4,392 5,843
Deferred income taxes ) 569 534
QOther accruals and provisions 4016 3,418
Other intracompapy liabilities -~ -
52,134 53,256
Minority interests 529 634
Shareholders’ eduity
Common stodﬁ, no par value
Authorized: 1,113,285,711 and 1,129,742,969 shares, respectively
issued: 891,075,711 and 890,866,301 shares, respectively 2,673 2,673
Additional paid-in capital 5,121 5,073
Retained earnings 25,447 23,020
Accurnutated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,386} (7,051)
Treasury stdck, at cost 250 and 1,184 shares, respectively -~ -
Totai shareholders’ equity 26,855 23,715

77,605

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
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Eliminations,
reclassifications and Financing and
Corporate Treasury Operations Real Estate
93004 9/30/03 9/30/04 9/30/03 9/30/04 9/30/03
11,251 11,345 908 725 31 79
8 101 1,361 529 17 20
(8) 9) 11,275 10,834 4,203 3,626
(12,257) (10,777) 12,251 10,742 6 35
2 ) 11,295 10,284 65 86
61 77 1,018 909 65 77
710 736 2,793 3,143 835 871
(237) 1,469 40,301 37,226 5,282 4,794
- 19 . 3,790 5,636 332 337
- - 6,394 6,421 82 80
- - 2,501 2,338 13 20
1 1 7,242 7.114 3,440 3,641
1,133 1,127 3,598 3,185 80 67
44 131 2,217 1,371 2,705 2,648
(1,284) (1,204 ] 1,284 1,204 - -
(343) 1,543 67,927 64,475 11,934 11,587
850 977 451 646 133 122
(3) 4 9,109 8,216 220 184
(7,449) (7.426) 1,703 1,771 5,746 5,655
6 6 9,055 8,748 179 130
(282) (271) 1,528 877 276 264
452 284 11,173 11,578 225 263
(6,426) (6,426) 33,019 31,836 6,779 6,618
8,538 10,176 750 748 497 509
- - 4,392 5813 - 30
184 182 274 250 1 102
25 21 3,586 3,101 405 256
. (2,664) (2,410) 457 378 2,207 2,032
(343) 1,543 42,478 42,126 9,999 9,587
- - 529 634 - -
- - 24,920 21,715 1,935 2,000

(343) 1,543 67,927 64,475 11,834 11,587




EJ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMERTS

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of €)

Siemens worldwide

] 2004 2003
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income 3,405 2,445
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided
Minority interest 166 96
Amortization, depreciation and impairments 3,344 3,334
Deferred taxes (309) 262
Gains on sales and disposals of businesses and property, plant and equipment, net, and
gain from issuance of subsidiary and associated company stock (246) (232)
Losses (gains) on sales of investments, net (612) 2
Losses (gains) on sales and impairments of marketable securities, net (47) 23
Loss {income) from equity investees, net of dividends received (287) 10
Change in current assets and liabilities
(Iﬁcrease) decrease in inventories, net (941) 8
(Iﬁcrease) decrease in accounts receivable, net (866) 623
In:crease (decrease) in outstanding balance of receivables sold 133 (291}
(Imcrease) decrease in other current assets 661 1,416
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 857 (396)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 302 (621)
Increase {decrease) in other current liabilities . (323) (668)
Supplemental contributions to pension trusts (1,255) (1,192)
Change in other assets and liabilities ) 1,098 893
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,080 5,712
Cash flows from investing activities
Additions to intangible assets and property, plant and equipment (2,764) (2,852)
Achisitions, net of cash acquired (1,477) (1,055)
Purchases of investments (374) (736)
Purchases of marketable securities (106) (221)
(Increase) decrease in receivables from financing activities (247) (94)
Increase (decrease) in outstanding balance of receivables sold by SFS - -
Procéeds from sales of long-term investments, intangibles and property, plant and equipment 2,639 839
Proceeds from sales and dispositions of businesses 325 119
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 186 61
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,818) (3,939)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 4 -
Proceeds from issuance of treasury shares - 4
Procéeds from issuance of debt - 2,702
Repayment of debt (1,564) {1,742)
Change in short-term debt (469) (445)
Dividends paid (978) (896)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders (101) (110}
Intracompany financing - -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (3,108) (487)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (113) (333)
Net in:crease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 41 953
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,149 11,196
Cash a‘nd'cash equivalents at end of period 12,190 12,149

Supplémenta! disclosure of cash paid for:
Interest 385 545
Income taxes 746 795
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Eliminations,
reclassifications and Financing and
Corporate Treasury Operations Real Estate
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
189 198 2914 1,897 302 350
~ -~ 166 96 - -
~ ~ 2,951 2,894 393 440
(16) 20 (267) 206 (26) 36
- ~ (222) (145) (24) (87)
- - (612) 2 - -
(12) 9 (33) 13 (2) 1
- - (293) 70 6 (60)
- - (962) 14 21 1G]
(658) (527) (208) 1141 - 9
65 21) 68 (270) - —
566 835 (183) 561 278 20
&) 3 827 (396) 36 3
- - 210 (571) 92 (50)
(330) 466 50 (961} (43) (173)
- - (1,255) - (1,192) - -
156 137 857 764 85 (8)
(46) 1,120 4,008 4,123 1,118 469
- - (2,328) (2,468) (436) (384)
- - (1,472) {1,055} {5) -
- - (367) (714) [€2) (22)
(20) (92) (86) (127) - (2)
569 276 - ~ (816) (370)
(65) 21 - - 65 21)
19 - 2,357 556 263 283
- - 306 119 19 -
104 26 67 34 15 1
607 231 (1,523) (2,655) (902) (515)
- - 4 —_ - _
- - - 4 - -
- 2,702 - - - -
(1,270) (1,700) (266} 12) (28) (30)
(414} (1086} {170) (323) 115 {16}
- - (978) (896) - -
- - (101) (110) - -
1115 (907) (765) 787 {350) 120
{569) (11) (2,276) (550) (263) 74
(86) (264) (26) (66) M (3)
(94) 1,076 183 (148) (48) 25
11,345 10,269 725 873 79 54
11,251 11,345 908 725 31 79
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Consoclidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity

For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of €)

Additional

Commaon paid-in Retained

stock capital earnings

Balance at October 1, 2002 2,671 5,053 21,471
Net income - - 2,445
Change in currency translation adjustment - - -
Change in unrealized gains and losses - - -
[Total comprehensive income - - 2,445
Dividgnds paid - - (896)
Issuance of common stock and stock-based compensation 2 20 -
Purchase of common stock - - -
Re-issuance of treasury stock - - -
Balante at September 30, 2003 2,673 5,073 23,020
Net income - - 3,405
Change in currency translation adjustment - - ~
Change in unrealized gains and losses - - -
Total comprehensive income - - 3,405
Dividends paid - - (978)
Issuance of common stock and stock-based compensation - 50 -
Purchase of common stock - - -
Re-issuiance of treasury stock ) - (2) -

Balance at September 30, 2004 2,673 5,121 25,447
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Cumulative Available- Minimum Treasury
translation for-sale Derivative pension shares

__adjustment securities instruments liability at cost Total
{132) {185) 59 {5412) 4) 23,521
- - - - - 2,445
(695) - - - - (695)
B - 268 24 (978) - (686)
B (695) 268 24 (978) - 1,064
- - - - - (896)
- - - - - 22
- - - - 127 (127)
- - - - 131 131
o 827) 83 83 (6,390) - 23,715
- - - - - 3,405
(249) - - - - (249)
- 77 (28) 865 - 914
(249 77 (28) 865 - 4,070
- - - - - (978)
- - - - - 50
- - - - (106) (106)
- - - - 106 104

(1,076) 160 55 (5,525) - 26,855
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Segment Information

As of and for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions of €)

New orders Intersegment
) {unaudited) External sales sales Total sales
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Operations Groups

Information and Communication
Networks (ICN) 7.011 7,070 6,323 6,592 671 530 6,984 7122

Information and Communication
Mobile (ICM) 11,459 9,960 10,881 9,811 161 153 11,042 9,964
Siernens Business Services (SBS) 6,293 5,226 3,598 3,964 1,118 1,241 4,716 5,205
Automation and Drives (A&D) 8,980 8,476 7,569 7,159 1,260 1,216 8,829 8,375
Industrial Sclutions and Services (&S} 4,356 3,955 3,147 2,907 1,143 1,105 4,290 4,012
Logi%tics and Assembly Systems (L&A) 2,687 2,599 2,173 2,444 165 156 2,338 2,600
Sieniens Building Technologies (SBT) 4,358 4,775 4,174 4,706 73 284 4,247 4,990
Power Generation (PG) 9,243 7.302 7,505 6,949 22 18 7,527 6.967
Power Transmission and Distribution (PTD) 3,863 3,586 3,292 3,188 319 21 3,611 3,399
Tranéportation Systems (TS} 4,321 4,674 4,284 4,668 26 29 4,310 4,697
Siemens VDO Automotive (SV) 9,029 8,375 8,987 8,365 14 10 9,001 8,375
Medical Solutions (Med) 8,123 7,835 6,969 7.345 103 77 7,072 7.422
Osram . 4,240 4,172 4,143 4,113 97 59 4,240 4172
Other Operations'® 2,102 1,840 1,174 1,129 976 728 2,150 1,857
Total Operations Groups 86,065 79,845 74,219 73,340 6,148 5817 80,367 79,157

Recongciliation to financial statements

Corporate items, pensions
and eliminations (7.381) (6,916) 208 192 (6,002) (5,605) (5,794) (5,413)

Other interest expense - - _
Other assets related reconciling items - - - - - - - -

Total Operations (for columns

Group profit/Net capital

employed, i,e, Income before

income taxes/Total assets) 78,684 72,929 74,427 73,532 146 212 74,573 73,744

Financing and Real Estate Groups

Sieméns Financial Services (SFS) 562 532 453 433 109 99 562 532
Siemiens Real Estate (SRE) 1,584 1,592 287 265 1,297 1,327 1,584 1,592
Eliminations - - - ~ (13) (12) (13) (12)

Total Financing and Real Estate 2,146 2,124 740 698 1,393 1,414 2,133 2,112

Eliminations, reclassifications

and Corporate Treasury - 3 - 3 (1,539) (1,626) (1,539) (1,623)
Siemens worldwide 80,830 75,056 75,167 74,233 - - 75,167 74,233

@ Group profit of the Operations Groups is earnings before financing ! Other operotions primarily refer to certain centrally-held equity invest-
interest, certain pensian costs and income taxes. ments and other operating activities not associated with a Group.

@ Net capital employed of the Operations Groups represents total assets @ Includes (for Efiminations within Financing and Real Estate consists
less tax assets, certain accruals and non-interest bearing liabilities other of) cash paid for income taxes according to the allocation of income
than t@x liabilities. taxes to Operations, Financing and Real Estate, and Eliminations,

3 Intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, acquisitions, and reclassifications and Corporate Treasury in the Consolidated State-
investments. ments of Income.

" )ncludes amortization and impairments of intangible assets, deprecia-
tion of property, plant and equipment, and write-downs of invest-
ments.
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Amortization,

Net capital operating and Capital depreciation and
Group profit® employed® investing activities spending®® impairments®

2004 2003 9/30/04 9/30/03 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

222 (366) 1,261 722 (212) 106 278 219 255 447

347 180 873 1,367 847 692 299 347 325 326

40 13 632 294 (263) (62) 428 193 213 255

1,077 806 1,951 1,925 1,026 1,060 312 281 209 231

85 (41) 1,003 167 (725) 54 892 45 47 52

2 (218) 537 877 (115) (170) 3 42 36 55

108 101 1,359 1,447 195 375 75 82 127 144

961 1.171 1,997 1,712 687 (448) 214 1,120 181 163

238 207 1,162 798 102 387 228 65 73 65

(434) 284 49 (252) (495) (217) 83 120 65 65

562 418 3,542 3,949 1,030 184 515 569 394 400

1,046 1,118 3,173 3,128 762 845 449 32 202 227

445 410 2,011 2,074 453 528 256 280 264 268

289 212 1,672 1,515 31 (362) 79 520 73 64

4,998 4,295 21,222 19,723 3,603 2,972 4,139 4,204 2,464 2,762

(1,207)  (1,576) (3,116) (3,781) (1,118)% (2,504)® 28 33 487 132

141) {88) - - - - - - - -

i - - 49,821 48,533 - - - - - -

13,650 2,631 67,927 64,475 2,485 468 4,167 4,237 2,951 2,894

Income before

income taxes Total assets

250 269 9,055 8,445 (159) (312) 31 237 194 220

108 206 3,455 3,607 457 351 137 169 199 220

- - (576) (465) (82)@ (85)® - - - ~

358 475 11,934 11,587 216 (46) 448 406 393 440

_ 224 266 (343) 1,543 561© 1,351©@ - - - ~

4,232 3,372 79,518 77,605 3,262 1,773 4,615 4,643 3,344 3,334
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Five-year summary

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Sales and earnings (in millions of euros)
Net sales 75,167 74,233 84,016 87,000 77,484
} Gross profit on sales 21,645 20,883 23,206 23,105 21,535
Research and development expenses 5,063 5,067 5,819 6,782 5,848
as a percentage of sales 6.7 6.8 6.9 7.8 75
Net income 3,405 2,445 2,597 2,088 8,860
Assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity
{in millions of euros)
Current assets 45,946 43,489 44,062 51,013 49,091
Current liabilities 33,372 32,028 34,712 44,524 36,855
Debt 11,219 13,178 12,346 12,610 9,338
Long-term debt 9,785 11,433 10,243 9,973 6,734
Net debt® 2,357 (379) (751) (4,017) 841
Pension plans and similar commitments 4,392 5,843 5,326 4,721 2,473
Shareholders’ equity 26,855 23,715 23,521 23,812 28,480
as a percentage of total assets 34 31 30 26 35
Total assets 79,518 77,605 77,939 90,118 81,654
Cash flows (in millions of euros)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,080 5,712 5,564 7,016 6,154
Amortization, depreciation and impairments 3,344 3,334 4,126 6,264 4,652
Net cash used in investing activities (1,818) (3,939) (810) (5,886) (435)
Additions to intangible assets,
property, plant and equipment (2,764) (2,852) (3,894) (7,048) {5,544}
Net cash used in financing activities (3,108) (487) (859) (95) (1,174)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 41 953 3,394 940 4,725
Employees
Employees®® (September 30, in thousands) 430 417 426 484 448
Employee costs (in millions of ettros) 25,440 25,752 27,195 27,102 26,601

® Net debt includes four positions from the Consolidated Balance
Sheets: Cash and cash equivalents, Marketable securities, Short-term
debt and current maturities of long-term debt and Long-term debt

@ Without temporary student workers and trainees.

© To be proposed at the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting.

) XETRA closing prices, Frankfurt.
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(in euros, unless otherwise indicated) 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
EVA (in millions of euros) 1,364 449 617 (743) 7.095
Earnings per share 3.82 2.75 2.92 2.36 9.97
Dituted earnings per share 3.66 2.75 2.92 2.36 9.96
Dividend per share 1.25® 1.10 1.00 1.00 1.60
Siemens stock price
High 68.30 58.32 78.52 105.77 127.67
Low 52.02 32.05 34.00 37.50 50.65
Year-end (September 30) 59.21 51.14 34.00 41.89 97.33
Siemens stock performance
over prior year (in percentage points)
Compared to DAX index® ~1.59 +36.34 +18.25 -19.84 +57.88
Compared to Dow Jones STOXX index® +0.17 +44.81 + 7.87 -28.30 +63.95
Number of shares (in millions) 891 891 890 888 883
Market capitalization at period-end
(in millions of euros) 52,761 45,559 30,273 37,208 85,939
Credit rating of long-term debt
Standard & Poor’s AA- AA- AA~ AA AA
Moody's Aa3 Aa3 Aa3 Aa3 Aa33
Quarterly data (in millions of euras) 2004 4™ Quarter 3" Quarter 2™ Quarter 1# Quarter
Net sales 75,167 20,828 18,216 17,794 18,329
Net income 3,405 654 815 1,210 726
Quarterly data (in miltions of euros) 2003 4™ Quarter 3" Quarter 2™ Quarter 1% Quarter
Net sales 74,233 19,778 17,380 18,230 18,845
Netincome 2,445 724 632 568 521
Siemens AG - Statement of income and balance sheet*
(condensed version) {in billions of eurcs)
Years ended September 30 2004 2003 As of September 30 2004 2003
Net sales 30.1 27.1 intangibles, property,
Cost of sales (22.1) (19.9) plant equipment 1.6 1.5
Gross profit on sales 8.0 7.2 Investments 37.8 37.6
Other functional costs (7.9) 8.0) Non-current 394 391
Other income and expense, net 2.3 1.9 Invertories - -
Income before income taxes 24 11 Receivables and prepaid expense 14.5 145
Income taxes (0.2 ©.1) Marketable securities, liquid assets 10.6 10.9
Net income 52 10 Total assets 64.5 64.5
Profit available for distribution 1.1 1.0 Sharehok"ler‘s"eiquity 5.8 14.6
* g;eg:;}e:{%ié\fccordance with the German Commercial :ﬁ;rgsgcngri‘;:i/es 18.0 17.4
Debt 0.2 0.4
Other liabilities 305 32
Total shareholders’ equity
and liabilities 64.5 54.5
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Asia-Pacific

R, s
W,

RARRAS]

AN
WYL
WH W, sl
W W

M@u
BRAINE

Shemie
Shenet

oy :

A Jeemne G EHEE
in Slema MW SIeFenSLm.
j Shemie W oy slemmens.co.th

Africa, Middte East, C.1.5.

&
d.; Tl Aviv
A Bleetrfeas

Serviees (.. i Wt b
M Stemens S.A., Ca it

la Stemens 19d., Leagos
fa) OO0 Shemens, Moseow
503 Aralbia Stemens 14d., Hdda w W she
9 Afirles Stemens 14d., lohanneshurg BRW.sleme
Shemens Information & Comamunieattons $,A., Tunls

Liraine e Shemeens 1 hraine, Kies
Uniged mirales Shemenes 10L, Abw Dhabi

4
¥




ECRPORATE ETRUCTURE

Corporate structure
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Pease use the sttached posteard to order coples of the
unabidged version of the Annual Resort:

o Anmeal Report 2004

¢ Geschaftsbericht 2004

o Rapport annuel 2004

o Memerta del ejareido 2004

Employess mey alse vbtain additiens! copies from

LZE, Ferin-Bislohe, Germany:

lntranet Ik @41:)533;@&@@1

e +49 911 654-4271

English Order ne. A19100-F-V63-X-7600
German Oreler no. A19100-F-V63

French Qrder ne. A19100 F-V63-%-7700
Spanish Oréer no. A19100-F-VE3 X-7800

Empleyees should include maling address and comp'ate
company unit designatien (Crg-ID) when orgering.




Siemens financial calendar”

Jexm, 27, 2005 Bistglaytegiivanciailiepcyy

Jom. 27, 2008 Aol - Olyrpiztuallie, Munidh, 10:00 &.m.
Jepo 2, 2008

Lgn. 27, 2008 Serend-aquerier finendsl repenr and Sermianauel Press Conferenes
July 263, 2008 Thire-quarer frendel reper

Moy 10, 2008 Freffiminery fgres fer fieeal yeer § Pross conferanee

e, 23, 2008 Anauel Shereheldess’ Maeeting fer fisea] 2065

3% E00

© Proveire.. Uprkies will be pesie 2t aruw, SetrEms.aern iRl calemekn
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Owdler me. A0 &

Slemens Aktiengesellschaft
SIEMIENS
Please specify Unabridged versions

[ ] Annuel Report 2004 English)
Geschéfltsbericht 2004 (German)

Repport annuel 2004 (Freneh)

L)) 0

Memoria del gjercicio 2004 (spanish)




Order card

To erdlar & copy of the unabridged versien of
Siemens’ Annusl Repert, please fll out and
return the card below.

R S S S B |

PO R R SR S

L S

Lastname
Firstname . ;.. _:

Company

i, ] Order card

|

R BEK GmbH

1 * Nordweg 6

- _¢& 2 D-75245 Neulingen
§ ¢ 53 g Germany




